Haringey Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee

MONDAY, 7TH SEPTEMBER, 2009 at 18:30 HRS — Committee Room 2, Civic Centre, High
Road, Wood Green, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillor Lorna Reith (Chair), Councillor Gina Adamou, Councillor Rachel
Allison, Councillor Gail Engert, Councillor Catherine Harris and Councillor
Jayanti Patel.

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (IF ANY)
To receive any apologies for absence.
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of late items of urgent business. Late items will
be considered under the agenda item they appear. New items will be dealt with at
Item 8 below.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the
consideration becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member’ judgement of the public interest.

4, MINUTES (PAGES 1 - 6)



10.

11.

12.

13.

To consider the minutes of the meeting held on 2 July 2009 as a correct record.
LETTINGS STRATEGY CONSULTATION PRESENTATION (PAGES 7 - 18)

A presentation will be given on the impact of the new Lettings Strategy on Care
leavers.

PERFORMANCE MONITORING: CHILDREN AND FAMILIES JULY 2009 DATA
(PAGES 19 - 34)

To consider specified performance data for Looked After Children.
FOSTERING CAMPAIGN (PAGES 35 - 36)
To receive an information report updating on progress with the fostering campaign.

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS FOR LEAVING CARE AND ASYLUM SERVICE
(PAGES 37 - 40)

To consider proposals for introducing a series of appropriate performance monitoring
indicators for the Service.

HARINGEY PARK AND MUSWELL HOUSE INSPECTION REPORTS (PAGES 41 -
100)

To consider recent independent visitor and Ofsted inspection reports for the two
Children’s Homes and subsequent action plans developed.

(Further exempt information is set out under Item 12).

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any ltems admitted at 2 above.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for consideration of Items 9-
10 as they contain exempt information as defined in Section 100a of the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended by Section 12A of the Local Government Act
1985); paras 1 & 2; namely information relating to any individual, and information
likely to reveal the identity of an individual.

HARINGEY PARK AND MUSWELL HOUSE (PAGES 101 - 216)
CHILD SAFEGUARDING

A verbal update on safeguarding issues pertinent to the remit of the Committee will be
provided.



14. ANY OTHER BUSINESS
To raise any items of AOB.

15. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

To note the dates of future meetings set out below:

20 October 2009
7 December 2009
25 January 2010
2 March 2010

12 April 2010

Yuniea Semambo

Head of Local Democracy and Member Services
5" Floor

River Park House

225 High Road

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ

Maria Fletcher

Principal Committee Coordinator

Tel: 020 8489 1512

Email: maria.fletcher@haringey.gov.uk

28 August 2009.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Awgrenda ltem 4

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 2 JULY 2009

Councillors Allison, Engert, B. Harris, Patel and Reith (Chair)
Apologies Councillor Adamou and Alexander

Also Present: Roy Choudhury, Attracta Craig, Denise Gandy, Roger Smith.

MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

CPAC24 | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (IF ANY)

Apologies for absence were received from Clirs Adamou, Alexander and
C. Harris (ClIr Patel substituted).

CPAC25 | URGENT BUSINESS

None.

CPAC26 | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

CPAC27 | MINUTES

The Committee agreed the minutes of the meeting on 2 June 2009 as an
accurate record.

Confirmation was provided that a member training session had been
scheduled for 29 July at 6.30pm, Civic Centre, to screen the Care
Stories training video.

The Committee requested that progress in relation to the drafting of the | Head
proposed leaflet for CiC (Children in Care) setting out the role of the | Service

council as a corporate parent be followed up. (Res &
Plcmts)

CPAC28 | LEAVING CARE

The Committee received a presentation providing an overview of the
Leaving Care and Asylum service from the Head of Service, covering
areas including relevant legislation, entitlements of young people leaving
care and the staffing structure of the service.

The Committee were advised that the involvement of young people with
the care leaver’s service was on a voluntary basis and as such often
challenging. In addition, the non-mandatory nature of engagement
generally precluded the establishment of formal performance indicators.
The Committee discussed the importance of introducing performance
monitoring systems to allow the evaluation of service outcomes under




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 2 JULY 2009

the remit of the Committee in relation to monitoring the corporate
parenting arrangements of the authority. Officers from the service
present recognised the value in developing some form of performance
monitoring for the Service and proposed useful measures including
reporting Level 3 qualification results and the sustainability of tenancies
of care leavers. It was noted that a more individualised approach would
need to be adopted to develop effectual performance monitoring, for
example assessing the progress of individuals against pathway plans
etc. The value of benchmarking performance monitoring approaches
with other authorities was recognised, as well as the potential for joint | Head

commissioning of research to allow pan-London comparison of | Service
outcomes for care leavers to be made. Officers agreed to raise these | (Leavin
issues at the next Leaving Care Leader’s Forum. g care)

AGREED:
e That the Committee receive a report to the September meeting | yoaq
setting out proposals for establishing a series of suitable | gervice
performance monitoring indicators for the service as a pilot | (Leavin
exercise, including any resource implications. g care)

In response to a query regarding the status of placements for care
leavers after the age of 18, confirmation was provided that young people
could remain in foster care up the age of 18, with post 18 foster
placement funding continued to the end of that academic year. The
individual is then transferred to ‘supported lodging’ status.

The Committee raised concerns regarding the quality of semi
independent housing arrangements in the borough, an issue that had
been raised at previous meetings. Members were advised that the
council had contracts with 5 private accommodation providers, with
provision primarily via shared houses. Quality of services provided is
monitored under the terms of the contract using a number of methods
including regular inspections. Recently, three of the providers had been
determined as not meeting the required standard and had been required
to improve within 3 months or contracts terminated. The Committee were
advised of the presence of additional semi independent housing
providers in the borough not commissioned by the council and thereby
not subject to monitoring by the service but the responsibility of the
placing authority.

The Committee discussed the difficulties in transition of young people
from the remit of children to adult social services, including the
applications of differing thresholds. Officers also confirmed the need to
improve communication with other council services including Strategic
Housing, other areas of the Children’s Service etc.

AGREED: Head
e That Leaving Care and Asylum Service officers forward to the | goyice
Head of Service areas where communication between services | (| eavin
needs to be improved in relation to achieving outcomes for care | g
leavers, to allow the Chair and Head of Service to action and | care)/C

progress as necessary. hair




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 2 JULY 2009

CPAC29

REGULATION 33 VISITS AND CHILDREN'S HOMES

The Committee were provided with feedback from Clir Hare on the
Regulation 33 visits undertaken on a regular basis by a small group of
Members to the children’s homes in the borough. The value of visits
being undertaken by Members in conjunction with an independent
assessor was recognised and that issues identified were being taken
forward by management. The Members had met recently with the
Director and Deputy Director of Children’s Service and Head of Service,
Resources and Placements (Children in Care) to discuss and progress
issues identified during the course of the visits.

Issues of concern raised following visits to the homes included the
cleanliness of some kitchen areas, the condition of furnishings in
bedrooms and addressing the sometimes institutional feel of the homes
e.g. communal rooms not always being unlocked. It had also been
considered that improvements could be made to young people’s
meetings and improving interaction between staff and CiC including how
issues raised by young people are addressed.

The Committee were advised that Haringey Park and Muswell House
had recently been inspected by OFSTED and had been rated adequate
and inadequate respectively. An action plan had subsequently been
developed to address issues identified particularly in relation to
improving policies, procedures and risk assessments. In addition, work
was underway with the Tavistock-Haringey Service in relation to
potential restructuring of the homes in the future.

Confirmation was provided that all staff working in children’s homes had
access to the Framework-l computer system.

AGREED:

e That the OFSTED inspection reports from Haringey Park and
Muswell House and the action plan produced to address
recommendations be considered at the September meeting of the
Committee.

e That the Committee receives independent visitor inspection
reports undertaken at council children’s homes as a standing
agenda item to allow progress against recommendations to be
monitored.

Head

Service
(Res &
Plcmts)

Head

Service
(Res &
Plcmts)

CPAC30

CHILDREN AND FAMILIES MONITORING DATA MAY 2009

The Committee received a report setting out the range of performance
monitoring undertaken by the Children and Young People’s Service in
order to determine which should be reported to the Committee on a
regular basis.

The Committee requested that in future all performance data reference
numbers of children in addition to percentages.

Officers
to note




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 2 JULY 2009

AGREED:
e That the following performance monitoring data be reported to the

Committee on a frequent basis:

o Total number of CiC and comparison data from statistic
neighbours to allow trends to be monitored.

o Number of children subject to care proceedings.

o Social worker allocation and turnover for individual children
over a year from the point that the child transfers to the CiC
Service.

o Visits to CiC.

o Reviews in timescale (NI 66). In addition, the Committee
requested to undertake random quality sampling of reviews
following appropriate training, against a model review checklist.
The Committee recognised that work would need to be
undertaken by the Service to develop the checklist, ascertain
sampling methods and anonymise files as appropriate.

o Adoptions and special guardianship orders.

o Monitoring of placement stability (NI 62 & 63) including
comparison data from statistical neighbours to allow trends to
be monitored. In addition, the Committee requested that the
reason for placement changes be clearly identified, for
example, whether a consequence of the child moving through
the system, or where placements have broken down etc.

o Monitoring of Personal Education Plan (PEP) including
numbers in place and also completed within timescale plus
reasons for non-compliance.

o Annual CiC education results, particularly at post 16 level.

o Attendance reports on a 6 monthly basis providing details of
CiC with 25+ days absence from school including reasons for
absence.

o Care leavers in suitable accommodation (NI 147)

o Monitoring of turnover of foster carers including level of
deregistration and reporting of reasons that individuals stop
becoming carers. Officers to determine best reporting format.

o CiC health monitoring including pregnancy levels and
maintenance of up to date medical and dental check ups.

DDCS

CPAC31

INVOLVING CHILDREN IN CARE - FEEDBACK FROM SOUTH
AFRICA TRIP

Clir Allison provided feedback to the Committee following meeting with
the group of looked after children that took part in the recent Tottenham
Hotspur Foundation trips to South Africa.

The young people were very enthusiastic about the trip and felt that the
opportunity had changed their lives by allowing them to experience new
cultures, to bond as a group and enhance skills including cooking,
teaching and presenting.

The Committee suggested that opportunities be explored with the
agreement of the young people for the group to give presentations on
their South Africa experience, for example to the CiC team or a CiC

Looked
After

Childre
n Team




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 2 JULY 2009

Conference etc. Mgr
AGREED:
e That two members of the Committee attend on a half termly basis
the homework club as part of the remit of interacting with CiC and
obtaining their views, which would then be fed back to the | All to
Committee. Clirs Allison and Reith to undertake the first visit. note
e That, following a request from the group of young people, the | Head
feasibility of providing laptops to CiC continuing in post 16 SRervuée
education be investigated and reported back to the Committee. (Plcenits)
CPAC32 | CHILD SAFEGUARDING
There were no safeguarding issues pertinent to the remit of the
Committee at the current time.
CPAC33 | NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS
None.
CPAC34 | ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Members considered the draft work plan for the Committee.
AGREED:
e That the agenda for the September meeting include:
o Foster carer campaign (information report) Releva
o Report on the independent visitors scheme nt
o Lettings strategy consultation report. officers
o to note

Options for introducing performance monitoring reporting in
the Leaving Care and Asylum Service.

Consideration was given to the status of the Committee in light of
discussions held by the Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice
Panel conferring agreement for meetings of the Panel to be held in
public and relevant documentation published. The Committee
considered that parity should be maintained between the two bodies as
both had been established as advisory bodies to Cabinet.

AGREED:

e That the Cabinet on 21 July 2009 be recommended to establish
the Corporate Parenting Committee as a Cabinet Advisory
Committee with future meetings and documentation open to the
public, subject to the access to information procedure rules.

ClIr Lorna Reith

Chair




Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



T
&
2
S
©
C
@
o)
<

Page 7

[lounon) AebBuriey

i

sbBui)jo ® spaaN BuisnoH Jo pesH
jye|n\ Jebiyinz :Aq pajuasalid

[1IoUuno’) AabulieH

yn'AoB Aaburiey mmm



Page 8

KabBuuiey yn°AoB Aaburiey mmm

de

X

)Ing Buiag sjapow puewa pue A[ddng jo ued -

Abajens
BbuisnoH pue ssajoWwoH pasiAal Jo 1ued ag [|IM

ybnoloq ayj ui payngusip si1 buisnoy
Aem ay)] ul }saiaju| [eonljod JO |9AS| paSBalIoU|

epusbe SSausSSa|¥JOM pue uoljelausbal
ul |00} AaY sk uaas buisnoy [el20S JO SUOIBIO||Y -

|J9AS| JUBWIUJIBAOL) Je saniold buibueyn .
buluipag Alddng jjejanp



Page 9

KabBuuiey yn°AoB Aaburiey mmm

de

X
(salo0bajes
W001pPaq ||B) POPMOIJIBAO A[BIBA8S GOE‘|

sjueus)
1Sy 8Je Gof Jaquinu SIyY) JO ‘pJepuels wooupad
AQ POPMOIDIBAO SB Paplooal SP|oYyasnoy 9y€‘g e

ssojawoy aJam sbuia| asay) JO %08 1ISOW|Y

006 Sem 60/800¢ ul sbums| |ejo]

(siepjoysses| /9% 't
GE1‘91) 209°‘0Z Xoidde Jo Yo0)s buisnoy [1IoUn0y) .

000‘61 punoue Jo Isi buniepp



Page 10

KabBuuiey yn°AoB Aaburiey mmm

de

) sjuiod Jo s|aAs| ybiy
aJe aJay) ssajun sjoadsold Buisnoy-aJ SjwWIT

sallanb pue s|eadde Jo jJunowe abny sa)elausn)

sjuiod aJow
uieb 0] ainssaid yym papeo| Ajinesay walsAg

Jajsiuiwpe 0} }noIyip pue xajdwon

sjuiod
aJow Buiseyod Ajjuejsuod sjualfo }jnsal e se ‘sey
Jual|o sjuiod Auew moy uo paseq buisnoH-ay

sjulod Jo sadA) Jualaljip g4 - siuiod uo paseg



Page 11

KabBuuiey yn°AoB Aaburiey mmm

de

X

Aoud
leuonippe Yim g pueq 0} 8Aow 0} Ajljige 8y} Yyim
1nq Ajolid pajiwil Ylm Sased ale (] pue D pueq MaN e

pajsisse ag 0] Ajy1] aJe
OUMm SIy} Ul sjualjo JO }|NQ By} BAEY |[IM g pueq MBN .

saseo Juablin Ajpwal)xa 1o) aq |[IM ¥ pueqg
2IN]oNJ)S pueq { 0} SAO|\



Page 12

KabBuuiey

yn'Aob Aaburiey mmm

spuewap bunadwon .

saljliold uo paseg .

JUBWINJOP |BeNUUY

Alddns buiysiuiwi@g -

pajabie) sbume| aioaym uo Aousiedsuel| .
Aolijod suoineooj|e 10j |00) AlsAldq -



Page 13

KabBuuiey yn°AoB Aaburiey mmm

de

X

suolelado
bulnjosyje ale jeyl sanssi swnioj) sejnbal 0] a)ngLIU0)

aseyd Ajes ul asue Aew jey)
sonss| Aue N0 UOoJl 0] Wea) SUoeI0||e YJIM MIOAN o

W9)SAS UO sJasn 92IAJas [enuajod ayeonpy .
awayos mau ajowoud 0]} wea | sBuaT UlIm YIOAA e



Page 14

KabBuuiey yn°AoB Aaburiey mmm

solouabe poddns yjim MIOAN

1Joddns Juswa|las 1sod 0] YUIT
99210yd abeinoouy .

wea) aied buines| UlIm Aj9SOo|0 YIOAN
Alddns pue sawn|oA UO paseqg .

SIEYNEE]
aJe? 10J ejonb o1j108ds Ajpuapl 0] Y0O| ||[IM ADI|0 MBN



Page 15

KabBuuiey yn°AoB Aaburiey mmm

de

X

suondo aAeUIB)Y

Ajddns uoys ui senuadoud Jebie .

way) yym bujiom saiousbe wol) Jyoddns pasu [|IN
(dn 18s 8q 0]) |aued aJej|oM\

|BID0S BU] BIA 1B paY 00| 8g [|IM S8sed 21j10adg .
salold oibsjess bunadwod Jo 1Xx8juod ul

Je PaY 00| aq ||Im sia)dope pue sJaled J8)S0) JO SPBAN



Page 16

KabBuuiey yn°AoB Aaburiey mmm

de

X

01L0¢
I1udyy Jo Buiuuibaq /yoiey Jo pus uonejuswas|dwy| [N

yoJse|\ /Aieniqe4 Swa)sAS UO || pOSINSY .

010¢ YoJeN 0} 600C
Jaquiao9( WOJ} SUOISSSS SSaualeme JS9p|oydXelS

6002 Jaquwada( |eaoisdde jauige) .
6002 JOQWAAON 0] Jaqua)dag wol) uoneynsuoy) .



Page 17

KabBuuiey yn°AoB Aaburiey mmm

de

X

SoAljeuJs)|e alo|dxd 0] pasu ay] ‘podu [BO0T] .
UOIJUBAJIB)UI JUBWIUIBAOL)

uoneltauabal ojeos abie7 .

spuewsp bunadwon) .

Ajddns |jejano Bulysiuiwip
uaAIb suolneldidse s ApogAlana joaw Jou [[IM ADIj0d



Page 18

[lounon) AebBuriey

s suolsanp

yn'AoB Aaburiey mmm



Page 19 Agenda ltem 6
h

‘/’?

Haringey
Briefing for: Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee
Title: Performance Monitoring: Children and Families — July
2009 Data
Lead Officer: Eleanor Brazil
Date: 7 September 2009

1. To provide a monthly update of performance monitoring activity in
relation to Children in Care (CiC) within the Children and Families
Service. Please note that up to date comparative data has not yet been
published for 2008/2009 - this report refers to 2007/08 statistical
neighbour data and will be amended as data becomes available.

2. Background information

2.1. The total number of CiC at the end of July 2009 was 516 compared to
519 children in June (105.4 per 10,000 population compared with 92.4 per
10,000 for our statistical neighbours in 2007/08). Of the 516, 54 children are
unaccompanied minors.

2.1.1. 17 children became looked after in July and 18 children ceased to be
looked after. Care proceedings were initiated on 11 children in July.

2.1.2. Since early 2008 we have seen increasing numbers of children in our
care population. The increasing numbers entering care each month have not
been offset by any acceleration in numbers of children ceasing to be in care —
either by returning home, by adoption or special guardianship or by leaving care
at age 18. The first chart below compares the number of children in care over
the last year with the previous year and the second chart compares the yearly
position with our statistical neighbour averages over the same period.

Page 1 of 4



Page 20

X

‘/’?

Haringey
Children in Care
540
Q 520 A———
© 500 —
O 480
8 460 —
2 420 ,W
400 ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
Jul- Aug- Sep- Oct- Nov- Dec- Jan- Feb- Mar- Apr- May- Jun- Jul-
08 08 08 08 08 08 09 09 09 09 09 09 09
‘—0— Total LAC —=— Total Previous Year CiC ‘
Children in Care per 10,000 population
110
105 .
i
100 +— — — |
95 +— ™ \\. — |E==3 Haringey
90 - — _ —=— SN
85
80 +— —
75 ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘ ‘
03-04 04-05 05-06 06-07 07-08 08-09 Jul-09

2.2. Allocations. All CiC had an allocated Social Worker in July. At present
reports are not able to monitor social worker turnover for individual children,
Members to consider whether a small manual sample be undertaken each
month to provide an indication of turnover within the children in care team.

2.3. Visits to CiC. 93.6% of CiC had an up to date visit at the end of July. 33
children did not have an up to date visit.

2.4. NI 66 Reviews in timescale. The percentage of CiC for whom there was a
review held in timescale was 98% at the end of July. Out of 495 children who
had been looked after continuously for the previous 4 weeks, 486 had been
reviewed within the required timescales. The number of reviews held out of
timescale was 9.

2.5. Adoptions and special guardianship of CiC. 9 children have been made
subject to a special guardianship order in the year to date. 3 of these were
special guardianship orders and 6 adoption orders.

2.6. NI63 - This indicator is based on children under 16 who have been
looked after for at least 2.5 years and have been in the same placement for at

Page 2 of 4



Page 21

X

7’4

Haringey
least two years or are placed for adoption. The position at the end of July is
61%. Of 145 children who had been looked after for at least 2.5 years, 89 were
in the same placement for at least 2 years.

2.7. NI62 - This is an indicator of the number of children who have had 3 or
more placements during the year. In the last 12 months, 13.6% of children have
had 3 or more placements (70 out of 516). Our target for this indicator is 11%.
Since April 09, 14 children have had 3 or more placements and 68 children have
had 2 placements.

2.8. Personal Educational Plans (PEP). 82.5% of CiC have a PEP in place at
the end of July. Out of 400 children who require a PEP, 330 have one. 59% of
these are up to date (195 out of 330. Work to review PEPs will commence from
the beginning of the new school year in September.

2.9. Health Assessments. Children in Care are expected to have a health
assessment undertaken once a year. Although this indicator is only collected
annually and based on the period April 09 to March 10, to assist us in monitoring
progress in this area we have developed an indicator which looks at the
percentage of children who have been in care for over a month who have had a
health assessment within the previous 12 months. The position at the end of
July is 60% (306 out of 511).

2.10. Dental Checks. Children in Care are expected to have a dental check at
least once a year. As above, we have developed an indicator which looks at the
percentage of children who have been in care for over a month who have had a
dental check within the previous 12 months. The position at the end of July is
50% (256 out of 511).

2.11. Outcome indicators for children in care — please see appendix 1 for
details of annual outcome indicators for children in care (children who were in
care for 12 months or more to 30 September 2008). These include data relating
education, health, offending etc. Appendix 2 is a breakdown of Haringey data for
2007 and 2008.

2.12. NI 147 Care Leavers in suitable accommodation. This indicator looks at
care leavers who were in suitable accommodation on or around their 19th
birthday. The percentage of care leavers in suitable accommodation at the end
of July is 78.9% (15 out of 19 who turned 19 in the year to date).

2.13. NI 148 Care leavers in Education, Training or Employment. This indicator
looks at care leavers who were in Education, Training or Employment on or
around their 19th birthday. 63.2% of young people who have turned 19 in the
year to date were in Education, Training or Employment on or around their 19th
birthday (12 out of 19 who turned 19 in the year to date). These figures are
based on low numbers who have left care so far and will vary considerably from
month to month.

Page 3 of 4



Page 22

X

‘/’?

Haringey

2.14. Audits of Quality. A new audit framework has been developed and will be
implemented throughout September with a view that the first results of audits
undertaken in October being available in November. Audits relating to children
in care will be fed back to members through the CPAC meeting on 7 December.

3. Options for consideration

4. Financial Implications - none

5. Legal Implications - none

6. Policy Implications - none

7. List the proposed routing for the report through the formal decision

making process

8. Appendices — Appendix 1 — Report on outcomes for children in care
2008. Appendix 2 — Haringey breakdown of outcomes for children in care
data for 2007 and 2008

Page 4 of 4



Page 23

APPENDIX 1:

Outcome indicators for children in care for 12 months or more at 30
September 2008

Introduction
The OC2 statistical collection

In September 1999 the Government established 11 objectives for children’s
social services in England. One of these is ‘to ensure that children looked after
gain the maximum life chance benefits from educational opportunities, health
care and social care’.

In order to collect the data needed to monitor progress towards this objective
three new statistical collections were introduced. One of these (OC2) covers a
range of outcome indicators for children looked after in England. The DCSF
publication presents the results of this collection for the twelve months ending 30
September 2008. The figures presented include the National Indicator Set
indicators 99 and 100.

This is the eighth time that children’s social care departments have been asked
to supply this information. Information about substance misuse of children looked
was collected for the first time for a twelve month period ending 30 September
2006.

Rounding and suppression of data to preserve confidentiality

The DCSF have applied rounding and suppression conventions to all data in
their publication, in order to conceal very small numbers. This is to prevent the
possibility of individual children being identified in the statistical tables. The
conventions used are now applied to all personal social services statistics
publications, and closely follow the established guidelines to protect the identity
of all children looked after. A result of applying this procedure is that some
columns of data at individual Local Authority level, which largely consist of very
small numbers, contain many dashes (-) to replace actual numbers in the range
1-5.

Coverage of OC2

The OC2 collection covers all children and young people in England who had
been looked after continuously for at least twelve months at 30 September.
These figures exclude children looked after under an agreed series of short term
placements (sometimes called ‘Family Link Placements’, ‘Short Breaks’ or
‘respite care’) during that period. These figures include asylum seeking children.

Where a child has ‘slipped’ a year or more (e.g. is taking key stage tests or
GCSEs later than expected from their date of birth) their results are not included.

Duration in Care

The 2008 OC2 collection shows that 43,700 children in England had been
continuously looked after for at least twelve months at 30 September 2008, a
decrease of 1% from 30 September 2007 when 44,200 children had been



Page 24

continuously looked after for at least twelve months. This represented
approximately 73% of all children who were looked after on 30 September 2008.

The figure of 43,700 from the OC2 returns closely approximates an estimate for
children at 31 March 2008 who had been looked after for twelve months or more
which can be derived from the SSDA 903 return.

Comparability of educational results (Tables 1,2,3,4,5)

The national figures for educational information including SEN and exclusions in
Table 1 and educational attainment in Tables 2, 3, 4, and 5 are collated
according to the Local Authority (LA) to which each school belongs. Many
children looked after in foster or residential placements are placed out-of-council
and this is particularly the case in the Greater London area, where typically more
than 60% of all foster placements are placed out-of-council and may well attend
a school belonging to a different LA to the council which is looking after them.
Caution must therefore be used when comparing educational data collected on
OC2, with that for all children.

Figures for children looked after at local authority level include maintained
schools, including mainstream and maintained special schools, City Technology
Colleges and Academies. Figures for “all children” at national level include all
schools, including independent schools whereas local authority figures include
maintained schools, including mainstream and special schools, CTCs and
academies.

Comparability between educational attainment data for children looked after and
all children at local level have to be viewed with these caveats in mind.

The national SEN figures are based on the January school census. All other
figures are based on a school year running from 1 September to the following 31
August.

Comparability of education, employment and training status

The comparative figures in 6 were provided by the Connexions Service and are
based on a survey of all year 11 pupils in maintained schools in England in the
school year which ended in August 2008. They exclude data from a small
number of independent schools.

Comparability of offending data (Table 7)

The figures for all children cited in Table 7 are for Police Force areas, which do
not necessarily follow the same boundaries as individual authorities, and in many
instances include the areas of a number of authorities. These figures must
therefore be treated with caution. At present the ‘all children’ data collected on
this basis are the only figures available to provide a comparison. Also note that
different authorities collect data on offending behaviour of children in care in
different ways



Page 25

Summary data for Haringey

General Education
230 of all children looked after continuously for at least twelve months were of
school age at 30 September 2008.

Compared to national figures for all children in England, children looked after are
almost 10 times more likely to hold a statement of special educational needs.
Just under 3% of all school children in England held a statement of SEN as at
January 2008. It is estimated that during the 2007/08 school year 28% of
children in care held statements of special educational needs. In Haringey 27%
of Children in Care had a statement of SEN.

13% of Haringey’s Children in Care missed at least 25 days school in the year
compared to 16% in 2007. This is still higher than the England average and the
averages of our comparator authorities.

Number Of
looked after | these, % %
for atleast | number | Children missed
12 months of with a % with a at least
(rounded to | school | statement | permanent | 25 days
Local Authority nearest 5) age of SEN exclusion | school
England 27.9 0.5 11.9
London 26 0 1
Haringey 300 230 27 0 13
Greenwich 380 275 23 0 16
Hackney 275 205 19 - 13
Hammersmith &
Fulham 220 160 21 0 12
Islington 255 200 30 - 9
Lambeth 410 285 21 - 14
Lewisham 350 240 26 - 14
Southwark 395 290 32 - 8
Wandsworth 175 135 26 0 8
Croydon 680 460 13 - 8
Waltham Forest 225 155 35 0 11
Averages 24.6 0 11.3

Table 1: Numbers of children looked after for at least 12 months and general information about their education

Educational Attainment

On average 56% of those children looked after in England in the appropriate age
group achieved level 2 at Key Stage 1 (79% Haringey), 50% level 4 at Key Stage
2 (65% Haringey) and 31% level 5 at Key Stage 3 (38% Haringey).

In addition there are two National Indicators (NIs) derived from the OC2 data.

NI 99 relates to the proportion of looked after children reaching level 4 in English
at Key Stage 2, NI 100 relates to the proportion of looked after children reaching
level 4 in mathematics at Key Stage 2. Haringey’s outturn for these indicators
was 68% and 63% respectively.



Key Stage 1

Page 26

Of Haringey’s Children in Care in Year 2, 11 were eligible to sit KS1 teacher
assessments. There was a significant improvement in the percentage attaining
level 2 in the reading task from 54% in 2007 to 82% in 2008. There were also
improvements in the writing and maths assessments. Our outturns at KS1 were
similar to the average of all children in Haringey sitting KS1 assessments.

Percentage attaining level 2 or above in each task or test

reading task Writing task Maths task/test

No. looked

after in Year

2 old enough

to sit KS1

teacher Looked | All Looked | All Looked | All
Local Authority | assessments | After Children | After Children | After Children
England 57 84 50 80 62 90
London 63 83 54 78 66 89
Haringey 10 82 81 73 75 82 87
Greenwich 15 69 78 77 75 92 87
Hackney 5 - 77 - 72 - 85
Hammersmith
& Fulham 5 0 81 0 74 0 86
Islington 10 - 79 - 74 - 85
Lambeth 10 - 79 - 74 - 85
Lewisham 10 73 79 64 74 91 87
Southwark 10 55 79 - 74 - 85
Wandsworth 10 - 82 - 78 - 90
Croydon - - 84 - 80 - 89
Waltham
Forest 15 86 80 57 75 86 87

Averages 56.6 79.8 49.5 75 67.25 86.6

Table 2: Eligibility and performance of children looked after in Key Stage 1 tasks and tests, compared with all children

Key Stage 2

In 2008 Haringey’s Children in Care showed improvements in English, Maths
and Science at Key Stage 2 and achieved better than the England, London and

comparator authorities averages. See Appendix 1 for comparison with 2007

outturns.




Page 27

Percentage attaining level 4 or above in each task or test

English Maths Science

No.

looked

after in

Year 6 old

enough to

sit KS2 Looked | All Looked All Looked | All

Local Authority | tasks/tests | After Children | After Children | After Children
England 46 81 44 79 60 88
London 49 81 44 79 59 87
Haringey 20 58 75 63 72 74 82
Greenwich 15 41 77 47 76 53 84
Hackney 20 30 75 40 72 45 80
Hammersmith &
Fulham 10 58 82 58 78 58 89
Islington 20 60 78 45 76 65 85
Lambeth 20 39 80 - 74 50 86
Lewisham 25 50 79 50 77 50 87
Southwark 25 31 79 27 76 50 86
Wandsworth 15 53 83 - 79 59 87
Croydon 20 42 80 42 77 58 85
Waltham Forest 10 73 80 55 77 73 85
Averages 47.7 79.3 45.5 76.2 56.1 85.4

Table 3: Eligibility and performance of children looked after in Key Stage 2 tasks and tests, compared with all children

Key Stage 3

Children in Care to Haringey improved on their performance in English from 34%
in 2007 to 41% in 2008. There was a slight improvement in Science but a drop in
Maths from 40% in 2007 to 33% in 2008.

Percentage attaining level 5 or above in each task or test

English Maths Science

No.

looked

after in

Year 9 old

enough to

sit KS3 Looked | All Looked All Looked | All

Local Authority | tasks/tests | After Children | After Children | After Children
England 30 33 30
London 34 33 27
Haringey 25 41 33 41
Greenwich 40 34 32 26
Hackney 30 54 54 25
Hammersmith &
Fulham 20 30 - -
Islington 25 39 - 30
Lambeth 30 25 - -
Lewisham 35 23 31 26
Southwark 35 24 22 19
Wandsworth 15 53 60 40
Croydon 50 17 27 17
Waltham Forest 20 37 37 -
Averages 33.6 37.6 26.1




Page 28

Table 4: Eligibility and performance of children looked after in Key Stage 3 tasks and tests, compared with all children

GCSE (Key Stage 4)

In school year 11, 63% of Haringey’s Children in Care attained at least one
GCSE or GNVQ compared with 96% of all school children in Haringey who
achieved any qualification. These figures are an improvement on 2007 when the
corresponding figure for children looked after was 60%. 32.5% of children looked
after by Haringey did not sit an examination of this type in 2008 compared with
40% in 2007.

23% of children in care obtained at least 5 GCSE's or GNVQs at grades A*- C
compared with 60% of all children who gained 5 or more A*-C at GCSE or
equivalent in Haringey. This compares to 27.5% of looked after children in 2007.
In addition NI 101 relates to the proportion of children who gained 5 or more
GCSEs including English and Maths. Haringey’s outturn for 2008 was 17.5%.

Percentage attaining at least

1 GCSE atgrade 5 GSCEs at grade 5 GSCEs at grade
A*-G or a GNVQ A*-G or a GNVQ A*-C or a GNVQ

Number

of looked

after

children

in year

11 old

enough % who

to sit sat one

GSCE or | of

GNVQ these Looked | All Looked | All Looked | All
Local Authority | exams exams | After Children | After Children | After Children
England 68.8 65.6 98.6 43.4 91.6 13.9 65.3
London 65 63 98.4 41 93.1 16 65
Haringey 40 68 63 96 48 89.2 23 59.7
Greenwich 50 75 73 98.7 50 92.7 21 57.7
Hackney 30 74 74 98.3 45 90.3 - 58.1
Hammersmith
& Fulham 20 60 60 98.4 40 92.5 - 73.4
Islington 40 70 63 97.1 33 90.1 20 56.4
Lambeth 55 57 50 98.9 36 91.3 17 62.3
Lewisham 40 63 60 98.4 38 914 - 59.8
Southwark 65 71 68 97.5 46 87.7 19 56.2
Wandsworth 20 89 84 97.4 63 90.7 - 66.2
Croydon 165 52 52 98.5 30 92.6 16 64.6
Waltham
Forest 20 45 45 97.9 30 94 - 59.5

Averages 65.6 62.9 98.1 411 91.3 18.6 61.4

Table 5: GCSE performance of children looked after in year 11 compared with all children

Post 16

At the end of school year 11, 95% of children looked after for at least 12 months
remained in full-time education or full/part-time training or employment and 5%
were unemployed the September after leaving school. In 2007, 87.5% remained
in full-time/part-time education or training and 12.5% of children looked after
were unemployed.



Page 29

Position of children @ 30 September 2008,
shown as percentage of total
Total number
of children
looked after In full/part-
in Year 11 time training
2007-08 In full-time | or
Local Authority school year | education employment | Unemployment
England 69 15 16
London 78 10 14
Haringey 40 75 20 -
Greenwich 50 75 - 17
Hackney 30 81 0 19
Hammersmith &
Fulham 20 100 0 0
Islington 40 78 0 23
Lambeth 55 74 13 13
Lewisham 40 58 20 23
Southwark 65 68 14 18
Wandsworth 20 90 - 0
Croydon 165 88 7 5
Waltham Forest 20 65 - 30
Averages 77.7 7.7 14.8

Table 6: Education and employment status at 30 September of children looked after in Year 11 in 2007-08

Offending

16% of children looked after by Haringey aged 10 or over, were cautioned or
convicted for an offence during the year, compared to the England average of
9%. The PAF indicator is the proportion of children in care who received a
caution or conviction during the year against all children aged 10 and over in the
police force area who received a caution or conviction. Our outturn for this
indicator was 4.1. Please note that different authorities collect data on offending
behaviour of children in care in different ways. Haringey uses the Police National
Computer (PNC) to check details of all children aged 10-17 regardless of where
they are placed. Other LAs only count young people who have attended local
courts.



Page 30

All children
Aged 10-17 | PAF
in police Indicator
Children Looked After force area C18
Number Number Percentage | Percentage
aged 10 cautioned | cautioned cautioned
yearsor | or or or
older convicted | convicted convicted
during during during the during the
Local Authority | the year | the year year year
England 2600 8.8 4.3 21
London 335 6 4 1.5
Haringey 225 35 16 4 4.1
Greenwich 275 10 3 4 0.8
Hackney 195 15 7 4 1.7
Hammersmith &
Fulham 160 20 13 4 3.2
Islington 195 - - 4 -
Lambeth 280 5 2 4 0.6
Lewisham 245 20 9 4 2.2
Southwark 305 15 5 4 1.2
Wandsworth 130 5 5 4 1.4
Croydon 615 15 2 4 0.6
Waltham Forest 150 10 6 4 1.5
Averages 5.8 1.5

Table 7: Offending by children looked after compared to all children in MPF area aged 10-17

Health Assessments

84 % of children looked after had immunisations that were up to date, 93% had a
dental check, and 93% had an annual health assessment. In 2007 these figures

were 83%, 93% and 96% respectively.

The PAFCA19 figure for Haringey was 93% compared to 87% for England. This is
an average of the children who had been seen by a dentist and those who had a

health assessment during the year.

% whose

developmental

assessments were

Local Authority up to date

England 87.5
London 94
Haringey 97
Greenwich 90
Hackney 100
Hammersmith &
Fulham 94
Islington 100
Lambeth 100
Lewisham 77
Southwark 96
Wandsworth 100
Croydon 90




Page 31

Waltham Forest 92
Averages 93.9
Table 8: Developmental assessments of pre-school children looked after
Percentages
Children Children Children PAF
whose who had who had indicator
immunisations | their teeth their annual | C19
were up to checked by | health (average
Local Authority date a dentist assessment | percentage)
England 82.3 87.3 86.5 86.9
London 82 91 91 9
Haringey 84 93 93 93
Greenwich 74 89 83 86
Hackney 93 81 99 90
Hammersmith &
Fulham 74 91 98 95
Islington 89 97 98 97
Lambeth 66 95 85 90
Lewisham 77 87 89 88
Southwark 89 90 92 9
Wandsworth 9N 95 98 97
Croydon 89 91 84 87
Waltham Forest 88 94 80 87
Averages 83.0 91.0 90.6 90.8

Table 9: Health care of children looked after

Health care of children in care twelve months ending 30 September 2008

120
100
80
60

LI

40
20

S s ‘{b @0 & @'Z}\{. S s &
A\ RS « ,‘(\ 0
@Q N @ef\ <\’°° S N VI
) é'\é‘ s ) s &
& R
@QJ
&

== Children w ho had their teeth checked by a dentist mmmm Children w ho had their annual health assessment

PAF indicator C19 (average percentage)

Graph: Haringey’s position on health care of children in care

Substance Misuse

7.7% of looked after children were identified as having a substance misuse
problem during the year (compared to 5% in England), of which 65% received an
intervention for their problem during the year compared to the England average
of 63%.



Page 32

and of these:

Local Authority

% identified as
having a
substance
misuse problem
during the year

% who
received an
intervention for
their substance
misuse
problem during
the year

% who were
offered an
intervention but
who refused it
during the year

England 4.9 63 34
London 5.9 66.7 35.9
Haringey 7.7 65.2 34.8
Greenwich 8.6 87.9 -
Hackney 4.4 91.7 -
Hammersmith &
Fulham 9.1 55 65
Islington 5.9 46.7 53.3
Lambeth 6.3 - 50
Lewisham 12.6 100 50
Southwark 2.3 - -
Wandsworth 5.2 - -
Croydon 4 55.6 444
Waltham Forest 53 - 50
Averages 6.4 72.8 52.1

Table 10: Substance misuse of children looked after

Data Source

e DCSF Outcome indicators for Looked After Children 2007/08

e 0OC2

10



Page 33

(%2°0v) LI %0°0% 30UaI0S
(%e°€e) 6 %0’ 0¥ Sonewaye
(%L0%) L1 %82 € ysibuzg
:S]S8) BUIMOJ|OJ BY} Ul G |8AS] }SBS| JB paule)e Oym Joquinn
0¢ [44 S)S9) pue SYSke} 9say} ||B 1BS Oym Jaquunu ay |
858y} JO
12 G¢ S1S9] puB SYSE] £SY JO pusd 8y} Jo} 8|qibi|e aJam Oym |00YDS Je @ JedA ul JaquinN
¢ abejg A3y :G uonjoag
(%l€l) vl %¥'2S 90UBI0g
(%2'€9) 2L %6'Ch sonewa e\
(%6°28) L1 %¥'2S ysibug
:buImojjo} ayj Ui t [oA8] }SBY| JB paule}e oym JaquinN
9l 8l S1S8] 9SaU] JO ||e 1BS OyMm Jaquinu ay |
858y} JO
6l 1z S1S9)] puB SYSEB) ZSY JO pus a8y} Jo} 9|qiblje aJam Oym |00UDs Je g JedA ul JaquinN
Z abejs Aoy :p uonoes
(%8°18) 6 %LC. 1S9)ISe) Soewa e
(%222) 8 %G'SP YS€) BUBLM
:SJS8) bUIMOJ|O) By} Ul Z |8A8] }SB8| Je paule)je oym JoquinnN
(%8°'18) 6 %G1 1S9} uoisuayaidwiod
Buipeal 8y} Ul ¢ [9AS] 1SES| JB PBASIYOR OUM JO YSe) Bulpeal sy} Ul Z [9AS] paulelie oym Jaquinn
1L 6 S]S9) pue SYSke] 8say] ||e }es Oym Jaquinu 8y
‘8say] JO
Ll Ll S1S9] puB SYSE) | SY JO pus a8y} Jo} 9|qibije Jam oYM |00UDS Je Z JedA ul JaquinN
| abejs Aoy :¢ uondag
(%E1L) 0 (%91) 8¢ uoseal Aue 10} uojeonpa sAep Gz 1Ses| je passI
0 0 |00YOS WoJ) UoISN|oXa Jusuewlad e panlooay
(%.2) 29 Spaa |euoneonp3 [e10adg JO JUBWle]S e AQ PaISA0D SJaM OUM JqUINN
858y} JO
0€C 8€C uoeoNpa awi-||ny 1oy 8|qibi3
uoleoNp3 |eJaudn :Z Uoljdas
86¢ (X4 Jaquia}dag YjQg Je 810w Jo Syjuow g| 10} Joyy paxoo ualpliy) [ejo L
ualipjiya |ejo :juoljdoag

¢J0 800¢ | 220 1002 Jojedipuj

€9lqeL




Page 34

(%9) ¢ (%S°ZL) S uoseal Jayjo Aue 1o} paAojdwaun alapn
0 0 Aljigesip e Jo yjeay-||i jo }nsai e se pakojdwaun aiap)
(%G°2) € 0 Buiurel Jo uoneonpa ‘JuawAojdwa swin-Jed ul 1o
0 0 Buiuiesy pauueld ou yym juswAojdwa awiy-||ny Ul dIS9AN
0 0 Bujures; pauueld yym juswAo|dwad swil-||ny Ul SIS
(%g°2ZL) S (%S) T Bujules) swi-|ny Ul 89
(%S2) 0€ (%5°Z8) €8 UOREONPS BWI}-||N} Ul SIS
J1aquiaidas Og Je oym Jaquinu ayj 8say} JO
ov ov suoljeulwexs (JusjeAinba 10) 3SOO 1o} 9|qibIjd 819Mm OYym |00YIS Je || JESA Ul Joquinu ay |
13A0 10 9| Je Uoijisod :§| Uoijoag
(%5¢) 8 (%¥ve) LI JeaA 8y} ul pasnjal Jnq UOIJUSAIBUI UB PaIBYO 8Jom OYm Jaquinu ay |
(%59) G1 (%G'29) L2 JeaA ay} ul asns|w 82UBISgNS JI8Y} JOj UOIJUSAIBIUI UB PAAISISI OYM Jaquinu 8y
:8sayj Jo
(%2°2) €2 (%6'6) 2€ Jaquiaydag g buipua JeaA ul wajqoid asnsiw 8oueIsgns e buiAey Se paliuapl uaJp|iyd Jo Jaquinu ay
¢l uonoag

%06°26 %L2'¥6 sjuassasse Yjeay y, sY2ayd jejuap jo abeiare) 619 4vd

(%6°26) 11T

(%96) 01L€

Jaquis)deg Qg Buipus Jeak ey} BuuNp JUBWSSBSSE Y)[Bay [BnUUE JIay) Pey Oym ualp(iyo JO Jaquinu ay

‘L1 uooag

(%6°26) 112

(%9°26) 662

Jaquiaydag ¢ bulpus JeaA ayy Bulnp 1siusp e Aq pa)oayd Y1aa} Jiay} pey oym ualp|iyd Jo Jaquinu ay |

:01 uopdag

(%2 ¥8)1G6Z

(%€£8) 892

Jaquwis)deg (g 1e 8jep 0) dn 8lem SUOBSIUNWWI 8SOUM UBJIP[IYD ||e JO Jequinu ay |

16 U003
0¢ %001 2)1ep 0} dn a1am SjUBWISSASSE [eJUBWAO[PASP 8SOYM Jaquinu ay |
:8sayj Jo
Le 6¢ JeaA | 1sea| je 10} Ja)je payoo| pue Jaquaydag Qg 1e JebunoA 1o pjo sieaA g abe JaquinN
juswdolaAa( :g uoljoag
4 S'C 810 dvd
(%2091L) 9¢ | (%€6) €2 19)J€ PaX00] BuIaq ajIym
PORIWILWIOD 92USHO Ue Jo} Jeak ay} Buunp puewidas Jo Bujuiem [eul 0} }08[gns Jo Pa}dIAUOD Jaquinu 8y
‘8say} JO
vze e Jeak | 1Ses| Je o} Ja)ie payoo| pue Jaquiaydag Qg 1e JaAo Jo | pabe Jaquinu ay]
BuipuayO ;2 uonoes
(%S'22) 6 %S'LC D 03,V 9pedb je (jusjeAinbs 10) S3SD9 § ISES)| J8 Paule}qo Oym Jaquinu ay |
(%G'L¥) 61 %05 9 0}, dpelb je (jus|eainbs J0) SSIO § ISES| Je PaUIeIqO Oym Jaquinu ay |
(%G29) §¢ %0°'09 9 0}V dpeib je (Jusjeainbs Jo) IS | }Sed) 8 paule}qo Oym Jaquinu ay|
(%S°29) /2 (%09) ¥2 suoljeUIWEXd 8S3Y) JO | 1SB| Je JBS OyMm Jaquinu ay |
‘8say} JO
oYy o suoljeuiwexa (JuajeAinba 10) 3809 10j 8|qIbI@ 81em Oym | | JeaA Ul Jaquinp
SDAND pue s3gJ9 :9 uoljodg

¢J0 800¢ | 220 L1002 Jojedipuj




Agenda ltem 7

Page 35

I 1% [4 4 1% [4 4
80°6002 206002 90°6002 S0'6002 €0°6002 206002 10°6002
I € 9 3 € 9 I 14
80°600¢ 10'600¢ 90°600¢ S0°600C 06002 €0'6002 ¢0'600C 10°'600C
0l 8 ¢l 6 4
10°600¢ 90°600¢ S0°600C ¥0°600C €0'6002
14 9l 8l €l 143 14 I 3
80600¢ 10'600¢ 90°600¢ S0°600C 06002 €0°6002 ¢0'600¢ 10°'600C
0l 14 6 8 € €
80600C 10°600¢ 90°600¢ S0°600C 06002 €0°600Z
0l Gc 142 8 € 9 I 3
80°6002 1206002 90°6002 S0'600Z 06002 €0'6002 ¢0'600C 10°600C
[4 24 142 A cl 6 l g
806002 206002 906002 S0°6002 06002 €0'6002 ¢0'600¢ 10°'600Z
8G Ge JAS GG oy 9 8¢

10°600¢

90°600¢C

50°600¢C

¥0°600¢C

Buiyoeu] Juswissassy BuLiayso

€0°600¢C

¢0'600¢C

10°600C

panoiddy siated N

sjeaosddy Ajyyuon VT

paubissy s,4 w104 H

dnoub juswissassy 0}
pap.iemio4 sjeniuj jo JaquinN

V4N s.jeplu]

paubissy s)sIA e

}saJajul jo uonesiboay .ﬁ

sauinbu3z jo Jaquinp E
[elol
Jes A



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 37 Agenda Item 8

Haringey Council

Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee (CPAC) On 7 /9/09

Report Title. Performance Indicators for Leaving Care and Asylum Service

Report of The Director of the Children and Young People’s Service

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information and approval

1. Purpose of the report

1.1.To inform the CPAC on proposed performance indicators for the Leaving
care and asylum service as previously discussed. This report should be
read in conjunction with the report entitled Performance management data in
children and families July 2009

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:
3.1 This proposal links to:
[ ]

the priorities in the Children & Young People’s Plan

the JAR Action Plan

the ‘London Pledge for Children in Care’

‘Care Matters: Time to deliver for children in care’ Children and young

persons Act (2008)

e Green Paper - Rights and responsibilities: developing our constitutional
framework

3. Recommendations

3.1. That the Corporate parenting advisory committee approve the proposed
performance indicators and that these are added to future performance
reports

3.2. That the Committee note the intention to join the Leaving Care
“benchmarking group” and request reports in future on the activities of this
group




Page 38

4. Reason for recommendation(s)
4.1.Corporate parenting is the collective responsibility of the whole Council.
Councillors have a distinct role to play in ensuring that outcomes and life
chances for children in care are maximised. .

4.2. Although there are a number of performance indicators and statutory
requirements relating to Children in care there are limited requirements in
relation to young people entitled to services under the Children (Care
Leavers) Act 2000, the proposals outlined put in place local performance
indicators for this group of young people

Report Authorised by:  Eleanor Brazil
Interim Deputy Director
The Children and Young People’s Service

Contact Officer: Roger Smith

Head of Service, Leaving Care and Asylum
Telephone: 020 8489 5813
Email: Roger.Smith@haringey.gov.uk

5. Summary
5.1.Children and Young Persons Act (2008) fulfils commitments made in the
White Paper, Care Matters: Time for Change. The proposals in this paper
provide measures of how well we are delivering services to young people
receiving leaving care services

6. Chief Financial Officer Comments
6.1.[click here to type]

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1. These proposals provide a way of measuring our performance in meeting
the commitments made in the White Paper, Care Matters: Time for Change
much of which subsequently became legislation as the Children and young
persons Act (2008).

8. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

8.1. Ethnic minority groups are over-represented within the ‘in care’ population.
At the end of April 2009, there were over 500 children in care, of whom a
significant number are from Black and ethnic minority communities. Children
and young people who are, or have been in care, also experience multiple
disadvantage.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 39

9. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

9.1.Care Matters — Time for change
London Pledge for children and young people in care
Children in Care — Overview and Update March, 2009
Green Paper - Rights and responsibilities: developing our
constitutional framework
UN Convention on the Rights of the Child
Beyond article 12
The local implementation of the
UN Convention on the Rights of the Child
in England - CRAE

14 Proposal

That systems are put in place to collect and report the following data in relation to
Leaving Care services;

All information relates unless otherwise stated to young people aged between the ages
of 18 and 21

1. Young people with an up to date Pathway plan presented as a number and a
percentage (young people aged 16-21). This is a regulatory requirement.

2. Young people who maintain contact with the service four times per year (number
and percentage). This is a regulatory requirement.

3. Young people achieving a level 3 qualification or above (this is “A” level or
equivalent) as a number and percentage aged 18 and 19. This builds on the reporting
requirement for GCSEs

4. Number of young people attending higher education (above level3) as a percentage
of those open to the service aged 18-21 and also as a number (to allow for young
people aged over 21 still receiving support)

5. Young people open to the service aged 18-21 who become parents. This builds on
the requirement to report on pregnancies under the age of 18

6. Percentage In suitable accommodation and in Education training or employment
(open to the service on a specific date there are formal performance indicators relating
to the 19™ birthday, NI147 and NI148, but this is a very small cohort and can be
distorted due to the small numbers)

7. Number of young people receiving a subject who have children who become the
subject of a child protection plan or subject to Care Proceedings. This is a very small
number but among our most vulnerable young people.

In consultation with the benchmarking group these performance indicators may be

modified or added to.

15 Summary and Recommendations

Report Template: Formal Bodies 3




Page 40

These performance indicators provide a means for the local authority to measure its

performance and progress in providing support to young people who receive “Leaving
Care” services

It is recommended that the committee endorse their use

Report Template: Formal Bodies 4



Page 41 Agenda ltem 9

Muswell House

Inspection report for Children's Home

Unique reference number SC035277

Inspection date 23/06/2009

Inspector Sandra Jacobs-Walls

Type of inspection Key

Setting address 9-11 Coppetts Road, London, N10 1HR
Telephone number 020 8883 7157

Emaii

Registered person London Borough of Haringey
Registered manager Margaret Ann Lucy Nelson-Cole

Responsible individual
Date of last inspection 10/12/2008



Page 42

Inspection Report: Muswell House, 23/06/2000 20ofil

© Crown copyright 2009

Website: www.ofsted.gov,uk

This document may be reproduced in whole or in part for non-commercial educational purposes, provided that
the information quoted is reproduced without adaptation and the source and date of publication are stated.

You can obtain copies of The Children Act 2004, Every Child Matters and The National Minimum Standards for
Children’s Services from: The Stationery Office (TS0O) PO Box 29, St Crispins, Duke Street,
Norwich, NR3 1GN. Tel: 0870 600 5522. Online ordering: www.t50,co.uk/hookshop



Page 43

inspection Report: Muswelt House, 23/06/2005 3o0fi1l

About this inspection

The purpose of this inspection is to assure children and young people, parents, the
public, focal authorities and government of the quality and standard of the service
provided. The inspection was carried out under the Care Standards Act 2000.

This report details the main strengths and any areas for improvement identified
during the inspection. The judgements included in the report are made in relation to
the outcomes for children set out in the Children Act 2004 and the relevant National
Minimum Standards for the service.

The inspection judgements and what they mean

Outstanding:  this aspect of the provision is of exceptionally high quality
Good: this aspect of the provision is strong

Satisfactory:  this aspect of the provision is sound

Inadequate: this aspect of the provision is not good enough



Page 44

Inspection Report: Muswell House, 23/06/2009 4of 11

Service information

Brief description of the service

This children's home is a short stay residential service registered for six young people
aged 12 to 16 years. The home aims to work with young people who are in crisis
situations for a period of up to three months. Staff support young people to return to
their family or to a previous placement or to move to appropriate alternative
accommodation. The home is owned and managed by the host local authority. There
is 24 hour staff support, including two waking night staff. The home is a double
fronted house close to local amenities. Young people have their own single bedrooms
on the first floor. The ground floor has a lounge, dining room and kitchen. There is
an office and a separate room used for meetings and for young people to receive
visitors. At the rear of the house is a well maintained garden and a hard surface area
suitable for ball games.

At the time of the inspection three young people were in placement at the home.
Two inspectors conducted the inspection.

Summary
The overall quality rating is inadequate - enforcement action.
This is an overview of what the inspector found during the inspection.

The purpose of this unannounced key inspection was to gauge the home's success in
addressing weaknesses highlighted at the previous inspection and assess the service
against key National Minimum Standards. All six outcome areas were assessed.

The previous inspection highlighted weaknesses in the staff's documentation of
information, the home's statement of purpose, relevant qualifications of the
manager, staff supervision and the home's quality assurance measures. Most of
these requirements have been repeated at this inspection,

In addition, weaknesses are identified in missing or incomplete files, inadequate
written policies, inadequate disposal of young people's medication, inappropriate use
of locks on the premises and poor ventilation in some areas of the home. The service
does not appropriately log all complaints and issues of equality and diversity are not
addressed well,

The inspection highlights that young people benefit from a well established and
committed staff group who are supported by line managers. The home's is well
maintained and the service has comprehensive health and safety measures in place.
Staff keep undesired incidents to a minimum and there have been no child protection
allegations, Incidents of bullying and accidents have not occurred in the home for a
significant length of time. Young people indicate that they feel safe in the home and
that generally staff treat them with respect.



Page 45

Inspection Report: Muswell House, 23/06/2004 50f 11

Improvements since the last inspection

The previous inspection resulted in six requirements; all but one has been repeated
at this inspection. The service has successfully resolved issues highlighted in the
monthly monitoring visits, however actions relating to staff's documentation of
information in a number of areas, the frequency of staff supervision and appraisals,
the revision of the home's statement of purpose and the manager achieving a
relevant management qualification still remain outstanding.

Helping children to be healthy
The provision is inadequate.

Staff of the home encourage young people to live heaithy lives. Young people's files
contain a dedicated heaith care section and staff encourage young people to register
with key health care services and attend appointments. Staff are available to
accompany young people to health care appointments if they so wish; young people
confirm that this is the case.

The Looked After Children's (LAC) nurse visits the home regularly and meets with all
newly admitted residents soon after placement start. The home provides young
people with a range of literature pertaining to health care issues and these are freely
available in the home's communal areas. The home has good links with the local
children and adolescent mental health service and the Tavistock Centre to help
address young people's mental health support needs. Most staff are first aid trained
and managers ensure that on each shift at least one member of staff has completed
first aid training. There have been no accidents in the home since the last inspection.

The previous inspection highlighted that young people's documented care plans did
not address their health care needs. This is also noted at this inspection. One young
person has a known medical condition that is documented on file, however there was
no mention of this in the young person's care/placement plan. It is important for
plans to outline all young people's key needs in order to ensure that services
provided address identified needs adequately. This is therefore a repeat reguirement.

The service employs a cook who is responsible for providing young people's meals
during the mid week. Over the weekend young people have a takeaway and prepare
a Sunday lunch with staff. Staff encourage young people to participate in making
decisions about meal choices. Young people comment that meals provided by the
home are satisfactory.

The service has a medication policy in place that offers staff written guidance about
the management of young people's medication. Staff receive training in medication
practices. All medicines are kept locked in the home's medication cabinet, which is
located in the staff office. Staff maintain accurate records of young people's
medication regimes and Medication Administration Records are complete. However,
staff do not promptly dispose of unused medication.Two differing medications were



Page 46

Inspection Report: Muswell House, 23/06/2009 Gof 11

present in the home's medication cabinet that had been prescribed for young people
who have since left the home.

Protecting children from harm or neglect and helping them stay safe
The provision is inadequate.

Staff make attempts to keep young people safe while in placement at the home.
Young people's information is kept secure in individual files locked in the staff office:
young people have limited access to this area of the home. Young people's
information is shared with other professionais on a 'need to know' basis and staff
know not to talk openly about young people's information with other residents.
Young people have access to information written about them and files contain a
confidential section which is restricted. Private and highly sensitive information about
a young person is kept elsewhere and not on general case files. Notwithstanding
this, the home's resident meeting book contains documentation that pertain to the
personal information of some young people shared in residents' meetings where they
were the only ones in attendance.

Young people's privacy is respected when washing. The home has a sufficient
number of washing and bathing facilities in the home; all young people's bedrooms
are fitted with wash basins.

The service provides young people with a range of information about the local
authorities general complaints procedure. This does not provide young people with
specific information about the process of making a complaint or expressing
dissatisfaction with staff or about the service. The home's children's guide and
leaflets on display does contain general information about making complaints. These
also provide the contact details of key advocacy services.

The home's complaint log contains information about a complaint made by a resident
since the last inspection. However the home's residents book and young people
themselves indicate that other complaints have been made during this time. The
home's complaints log is not reflective of all complaints made about the service and
does not encourage young people to express dissatisfaction with the service. This is
contrary to the requirements of the regulations.

There have been no allegations or incidents of a child protection nature since the last
inspection. Staff receive child protection training facilitated by the borough's child
protection team. Staff have access to written guidance on the safeguarding of young
people in placement. Staff team meetings regularly address issues of child
protection. The home does not maintain centralised records of significant incidents
that occur in the home; these are kept on young people's individual files.

Young people comment that bullying is not an issue in the home and are aware of
the service's 'zero tolerance' stance with regard to bullying. Young people receive
information that explain the expectation of staff in relation to bullying and this is
discussed at residents’ meetings.



Page 47

Inspection Report: Muswell House, 23/06/2009 7of i1

Young people are aware of the home's protocols if they are absent from the home
without permission. Staff have access to relevant written policies on site that outline
action to be taken if young people are deemed 'missing’. Staff maintain good records
of instances where young people are absent and action taken is consistent with
policy guidance,

With regard to behaviour management, staff have access to comprehensive written
guidance. Staff encourage young people to display acceptable behaviour by making
use of the home's reward system. Files contain good records of where young people
have received rewards. Where young people's behaviour is not acceptable, staff
attempt to address this through discussion and if necessary will impose sanctions.
Staff are familiar with permissible and non permissible sanctions and these are
displayed on the sanctions log book. Staff impose sanctions that are fair and relate to
the presented behaviour. Staff's appropriate use of sanctions is monitored via
monthly monitoring visits. No young person has been restrained by staff: the staff
group have received training in physical intervention and demonstrate an
understanding that these techniques are used only in extreme situations and as a
last resort.

The premises generally provides young people with physical safety and security.
Young people comment that they feel safe in the building. Staff have access to
health and safety policies that address building risk assessment, the testing of fire
equipment, alarm and emergency systems. Staff maintain good records of equipment
checks and fire drills. Staff conduct evacuation procedures regularly end ensure all
new residents have an opportunity to participate while in placement at the home.
The night staff are responsible for checking the entire building on a daily basis. The
home makes use of alarmed exit doors, fire doors and smoke alarms. However, fire
extinguishers are not evident around the building; this is due to young people's past
inappropriate use of the extinguishers. This is not safe fire prevention and the
absence of readily accessible fire extinguishers puts both young people and staff at
risk.

The local authority's human resources department is responsible for staff recruitment
and personnel records are maintained off site. Standards relating to staff vetting is
therefore not assessed on this occasion.

Helping children achieve well and enjoy what they do
The provision is satisfactory.,

Staff demonstrate an effort to meet the individual needs of young people in
placement and are able to give verbal illustration of how this is achieved. Key work
sessions for example, indicate staff's attempts to address young people's individual
needs. However, documented care and placement pians do not support this ethos.
The placing authority's care plans are not consistently evident on file. Young people
indicate limited understanding about their placement objectives.



Page 48

Inspection Report: Muswell House, 23/06/2009 Bof 11

Staff indicate the educational achievement of young people living at the home is a
high priority and young people confirm that staff make keen efforts to encourage
young people to view their education as being valuable. Staff admit that many of the
young people show little interest in their education and indicate it is challenging to
persuade them to view their education as being important.

Case files demonstrate the close working relationship between staff of the home and
educational professionals to assist young people make educational progress. Staff
attend Personal Educational Planning meetings, educational open evenings and are
present for other key educational forums. Staff consistently speak with young people
about the value and importance of education both on an individual level and in
residents' meetings and LAC reviews. Files contain key documentation relating to
young people’s educational progress such as school reports, attendance and
performance evaluations and exclusion notices. Staff support young people's learning
by providing each young person with a desk to complete work and young people
have access to the home's computer room for this purpose.

Helping children make a positive contribution
The provision is inadequate.

Young people's placement plans do not address their individual needs and the local
authority care and placement plans are not always present on file or are incomplete.
Two young people's documented placement/care plans are almost identical in
content and do not adequately address young people's individual needs. This is
despite the two young people in question having very differing needs. Care plans do
not address issues of identity, diversity and equality. Individual care plans are similar
in content as the care planning tool is generic in its format.

Staff complete risk assessments and these are evident on file. However, some of
these are incomplete while others identify the risk, but do not offer staff strategies to
minimise or eliminate the risk. There is some evidence on file of young people's
needs and development being reviewed; this is primarily achieved via the statutory
LAC reviewing process. Staff of the home also complete monthly summary reports
that highlight placement progress and issues.

Young people confirm that they maintain contact with family members and friends
while living at the home. Staff encourage young people's significant others to visit
the home although this rarely occurs. Young people indicate they prefer to meet with
friends away from the home. Staff encourage family members to attend key
meetings held at the home and this does happen. The home has flexible visitation
rules and staff discuss these with young people upon admission to the home. Young
people also receive literature about this.

Staff encourage young people to make decisions about their lives and how the home
is run. The home's residents' meeting is reqularly convened and young people have
the opportunity to share their views about the running of the home and the service
in general. Young people do not consistently attend residents meetings and on some



Page 49

Inspection Report: Muswell House, 23/06/2009 9of 11

occasions these meetings are held with only one participant. Records of these
meetings indicate that a range of topics are presented for discussion, such as meal
planning, the completion of chores, recreational activities etc. Young people indicate
that they feel they have some input into the manner in which services at the home
are provided, but do not feel that the home's residents' meetings are effective as
staff largely facilitate and manage these meetings.

Achieving economic wellbeing
The provision is inadequate,

Staff keep most communal areas of the home locked during school hours. This is to
deter young people from staying home when they should be engaged in educational
activities, either at school or on site. Staff confirm that all communal areas of the
home are kept locked during the day, including the lounge, dining area and
especially the kitchen. The kitchen area especially is always kept locked, even when
the cook is present. This is due to the inappropriate behaviour of former residents.
There are no risk assessments in place to support the need for the continuation of
this practice.

Young people complain that they do net have access to drinking water as there is no
ready access to cups at the dining room water cooler. Again, staff comment that this
is due to young people's challenging behaviour at times. This practice is not
conducive with providing an environment that supports young people's development
and independence. These restrictions impinge negatively on young peopie and
restrict their movement and accessibility to the full range of facilities while in the
home.

Young people generally feel that the home's environment is good and they enjoy
their surroundings. The home is well maintained, decorated and furnished. It is
suitably equipped and there is a good programme of maintenance repair. However,
young people complain that ventilation in some bedrooms are poor and their
requests for ventilation fans remain outstanding. Staff confirm this to be the case as
the fans are currently on order. The poor ventilation in young people's bedrooms
impinge on young people's comfort while in placement at the home.

Organisation
The organisation is inadequate.

The previous inspection highlighted that the home's statement of purpose required
further revision. During this inspection it is noted that the document is not a fully
accurate reflection of services offered by the home. For example, staff confirm that
clinical consultancy is not offered to the service by the Tavistock Centre as stated.
The document states that care plans, risk assessments and local authority
assessment are completed, however this is found not to be the case. There is little
evidence of the service meeting young people's 'diverse needs' and some staff
supervision and appraisals are not completed at appropriate intervals. The statement



Page 50

Inspection Report: Muswell House, 23/05/2009 10of 11

of purpose document does not include the relevant qualification and experience of
staff working in the home.

The home's children's guide is yet to be issued by the service and remains in draft
form. The document is lengthy, with sometimes vague information; this is
particularly true of information outlining the home's complaints procedure. Staff
comment that creative graphics are yet to be added to the document and that the
home's accompanying 'welcome pack'’ is in need of further development.

The promotion of equality and diversity is poor. Staff and case files do not
demonstrate that adequate attention is paid to the diverse needs of young people.
Individual care and placement plans do not proactively identify or address issues of
identity, equality or diversity which is a key component of young people's
development.

Many of the staff group have completed or are in the process of completing NVQ3
training. Staff have access to training facilitated by the council, managers of the
team and some external training. Support and informal supervision via line managers
is good, but the frequency of formal supervision and appraisals for some staff
members is irregular. This is particularly the case for waking night staff. This issue
was highlighted as a weakness at the previous inspection and is important to ensure
staff competencies are of an acceptable standard. The requirement is repeated.

The staff group are sufficient in number, qualifications and experience. However the
service lacks robust monitoring systems and strong leadership to improve service
provision. The borough has recently recruited an independent consultant to assist
reviewing and improve the home's current functioning levels. The home's registered
manager is yet to identify and complete a management course in accordance with
the National Minimum Standards. This was highlighted at the previous inspection and
is recommended as good practice to help develop strong leadership and enhance
service improvement.

Young people's care is monitored in the home via monthly monitoring visits.
Independent individuals conduct these visits consistently and subsequent reports are
detailed. Staff anticipate that the borough's recent recruitment of an independent
consultant will assist the service to explore service provision and development within
a wider context of residential care,

What must be done to secure future improvement?

Statutory Requirements

This section sets out the actions, which must be taken so that the registered
person/s meets the Care Standards Act 2000, Children's Homes Reguiations 2001
and the National Minimum Standards. The Registered Provider(s) must comply with
the given timescales,



Page 51

Inspection Report: Muswell House, 23/06/2009

itofii

Std.

Action

Due date

12

ensure the health of young people is promoted and protected
and adequate information about their health needs is available
on care plans. Regulation 20 (1)

01/10/2009

13

ensure there are suitable arrangements in place for the disposal
of unused medication (Regulation 21)

03/08/2009

ensure that there are suitable arrangements in place so that
young people's private information is respected (Regulation 11)

03/08/2009

16

ensure that young people have comprehensive written
information that outline the home's complaints procedure
(Regulation 24)

01/10/2009

16

ensure that a written record is made of any complaint, the
action taken in response, and the outcome of the investigation.
(Regulation 24)

03/08/2009

26

ensure that unnecessary (fire) risks to the health or safety of
young people are identified and eliminated. (Regulation 23)

01/10/2009

ensure that the service promotes and make proper provision for
the welfare of young people by devising placement plans that
address their specific and individual needs. (Regulation 12)

01/10/2009

ensure that the welfare of young people is safeguarded and
promoted through the comprehensive completion of risk
assessments (Regulation 12)

01/10/2009

23

ensure that the conduct of the home promotes and makes
proper provision for the welfare of young people, particularly in
relation to their freedom of movement within the home.
(Regulation 11)

03/08/2009

24

ensure that young people's bedrooms are adequately ventilated.
(Regulation 31)

03/08/2009

keep under review and revise where appropriate the statement
of purpose and the chidren's guide (Regulation 5)

01/10/2009

29

ensure staff receive regular supervision and appraisals which are
reviewed regularly. Regulation 27(4)(a)

01/10/2009

33

establish and maintain a system for improving the quality of
care provided in the home (Regulation 34)

01/10/2009

Recommendations

To improve the quality and standards of care further the registered person should
take account of the following recommendation(s):

consider maintaining centralised records of undesired incidents that occur in the
home (National Minimum Standard 17)
consider the manager's enrolment onto a suitable management course (National
Minimum Standard 34)




Page 52
Our Reference SC035277

Ofsted

raising standards
improving lives

Notice of requirement to improve — reply form

For the attention of James Bridges, Inspection Support Team. _

ACﬁO"-Fequir_ed_ S .Agtigﬁ'_:_tfake_n R G nate
T o completed

ensure that young people have

comprehensive written

information that outline the

home's complaints procedure

(Regulation 24)

ensure that a written record is
made of any complaint, the
action taken in response, and
the outcome of the
investigation. (Regulation 24)

establish and maintain a
system for improving the
guality of care provided in the
home (Regulation 34)*

ensure that the welfare of
young people is safeguarded
and promoted through the
comprehensive completion of
risk assessments (Regulation
12)

T T

Page 5 of 7 - SC1.112 reply form



Our Reference SC035277

ensure that the conduct of the
home promotes and makes
proper provision for the
welfare of young people,
particularly in relation to their
freedom of movement within
the home. (Regulation 11)

ensure that unnecessary (fire)
risks to the health or safety of
young people are identified
and eliminated. (Regulation
23)

ensure that the service
promotes and make proper
provision for the welfare of
young people by devising
placement plans that address
their specific and individual
needs. (Regulation 12)*

keep under review and revise
where appropriate the
statement of purpose and the
chidren's guide (Regulation 5)*

ensure staff receive regular
supervision and appraisals
which are reviewed regularly.
Requlation 27(4)(a)*

Page 6 of 7 - SCL112 V1_20090507

Page 53



Our Reference SC035277

ensure that there are suitable
arrangements in place so that
young people's private
information is respected
(Regulation 11)

ensure the health of young
people is promoted and
protected and adequate
information about their health
needs is available on care
plans. Reguiation 20 (1)*

ensure there are suitable
arrangements in place for the
disposal of unused medication
(Regulation 21)

ensure that young people's
bedrooms are adequately
ventilated. (Regulation 31)

Signed:
Print name;
Job title:

Date:

Page 7 of 7 - SCL112 Vi _20090507

Page 54



Our Reference SC035277 Page 55

. %
*KX XK

Ofsted

Notice of requirement to improve

Ofsted has judged your Children's Home provision as not meeting a
regulation. This notice contains details of actions you need to take to bring
about the necessary improvement by the dates given. Those actions marked
with a * are also subject to a Statutory Requirement Notice.

Action . Date
ensure that young people have comprehensive written 01/10/2009

information that outline the home's complaints procedure
(Regulation 24)

ensure that a written record is made of any complaint, the  03/08/2009
action taken in response, and the outcome of the
investigation. (Regulation 24)

establish and maintain a system for improving the quality 01/10/2009
of care provided in the home (Regulation 34)*

ensure that the welfare of young people is safeguarded 01/10/2009
and promoted through the comprehensive completion of
risk assessments (Regulation 12)

ensure that the conduct of the home promotes and makes  03/08/2009
proper provision for the welfare of young people,

particularly in relation to their freedom of movement within

the home. (Regulation 11)

ensure that unnecessary (fire) risks to the health or safety  01/10/2009
of young people are identified and eliminated. (Regulation
23)

ensure that the service promotes and make proper 01/10/2009
provision for the welfare of young people by devising

placement plans that address their specific and individual

needs. (Regulation 12)*

keep under review and revise where appropriate the 01/10/2009
statement of purpose and the chidren's guide (Regulation

5y

ensure staff receive regular supervision and appraisals 01/10/2009
which are reviewed regularly. Regulation 27(4)(a)*

ensure that there are suitable arrangements in place so 03/08/2009

that young people's private information is respected
(Regulation 11)

Page 3 of 7 - SCL112 VZ_20090604



Our Reference SC035277 Page 56

Ofsted

ensure the heaith of young people is promoted and 01/10/2009
protected and adequate information about their health
needs is available on care plans. Regulation 20 (1)*

ensure there are suitable arrangements in place for the 03/08/2009
disposal of unused medication (Regulation 21)
ensure that young people's bedrooms are adequately 03/08/2009

ventilated. (Regulation 31)

You shouid have completed those actions with dates that have already
passed.

An inspector may carry out an announced or unannounced visit to check that
the necessary improvements have been made. If you have not carried out the
required action or what you have done has had little impact, we may take
further enforcement measures.

You must carry out these actions by the date(s) given otherwise Ofsted may
take further action.

You will need to let us know when you have carried out all of the actions, by
completing the attached reply form and returning it to Ofsted at the above
address. If we have not heard from you by the date given, we will contact
you again.

Page 4 of 7 - SCL112 V2_ 20090604



Scuth

]
]
Ereshiorg House Telephone: (08456 404040 ’ x K
Redciiffe Way Fax: 08455 40 40 49 x
Bristol Email: enquiries@ofsted.gov,uk Ste
851 6NL Web: www.ofsted.gov.uk

raising standards
22 July 2009 improving lives

Mrs Margaret Ann Lucy Nelson-Cole Our Reference SC035277\C111440
Muswell House

London Borough Of Haringey:

Department Of Social Services

9-11 Coppetts Road

London

N10 1HR

Dear Mrs Nelson-Cole

Statutory requirement notice

You are currently registered by Ofsted to manage a children’s home. This
notice is in relation to your provision registered at;

9-11 Coppetts Road
London
N10 1HR

In order to remain fit for registration you must comply with the requirements
of the Care Standards Act 2000 and the Children’s Homes Regulations 2001
made under that Act.

You are in breach of regulation 20 of the Children’s Homes Regulations 2001
which states:

Health needs of children

20. - (1) The registered person shall promote and protect the health of the
children accommodated in a children's home.

Ofsted is of the opinion that you have failed to comply with the requirements
of the law for the following reasons:

An inspection was undertaken on 9 July 2008 and during this inspection, the
Ofsted inspector noted that there was limited information available on the
placement plan regarding children’s health. The specific health section was
not completed on either file with regard to dietary and health needs,
immunisation records, and the details of the doctor. Particular health needs

PR SR Y TN b T P [+
PROTECT-HEGL ATORY Nt

SCL170 V120090604 BVESTOR IR PROPLE



Page 58
Our Reference SC035277\C111440

PROTECT-REGULATORY

which may impact on future outcomes for children and young people were
not clearly recorded.

As a result of this inspection, the following action was set with a completion
date of 29 August 2008:

ensure that each child has a health plan on file. Health records for each child
must be complete and signed at the beginning of each placement.

During an inspection on 10 December 2008, the inspector noted that
placement information records and the home's care plans were in place;
however information regarding health was limited. For example one file did
not include the name and address of the doctor. Other files identified needs
related to diet and allergies. However, information was not available to say
how these needs were being addressed or how the problems identified were
being monitored.

As a result of this visit, the following action was set with a completion date of
16 January 2009:

ensure the health of children and young people is promoted and protected
and adequate information about their heaith needs is available on care plans.

At the most recent inspection on 23 June 2009, the inspector noted that the
previous inspection had highlighted that young people's documented care
plans did not address their health care needs. This was also noted at this
inspection as one young person has a known medical condition that was
documented on file. There was no mention of this in the young person's care
plan. The inspector noted that it was important for care plans to outline all
young people's key needs in order to ensure that services provided address
identified needs adequately.

Ofsted requires you to take the following action in order to comply with the
legislation.

The following actions are to be completed by the date shown Date
Ensure the health of young people is promoted and protected 01/10/2009
and adequate information about their health care needs is

available on care plans. Regulation 20 (1).

PROTECT-REGULATORY

Page 2 of 3- SCL170 V1_20090604

. ]
*K K

Ofsted



Page 59
Our Reference SC035277\C111440 9 .’
KKK

PROTECT-REGULATORY O f S t d

If you do not take the action required by the date shown you will be guilty of
an offence and we may prosecute you.

You have the right to make a written representation to Ofsted about any
matter you wish to dispute. You must do this by 31 August 2009. Please
contact the CIE Helpline on 08456 40 40 40 for further details.

We will monitor your compliance with this notice.

If you have any questions piease call the telephone number at the top of this
notice.

Yours sincerely

€ Sup—

Roger Shippam
Director, Chiidren

SWEET T PRI 1 A T S

Page 3 of 3- SCLA70 Vi_20090604



Page 60

South

]
Freshiord House Tetephone: 08456 404040 ***
Redcliffe Way Fax: 08456 40 40 45
Bristol Email: enguiries@ofsted.gov.sk Ofsted
BS1 6NL Web: www.ofsted.gov.uk

raising standards
22/07/2009 improving lives

Mrs Margaret Ann Lucy Nelson-Cole Our Reference SC035277
Muswell House

London Borough Of Haringey:

Department Of Social Services

9-11 Coppetts Road

London

N10 1HR

Dear Mrs Nelson-Cole

Inspection report

An Ofsted inspector inspected your Children's Home provision on 23/06/2009.
Please find enclosed:

a copy of your inspection report

6 copies of the children’s summary

Statutory requirements notices
a notice of requirement to improve your Children's Home provision

*® € & @

The inspection report

The inspection report sets out Ofsted’s judgements about the quality of the
provision you offer. Please make the report available to children and young
people and relevant stakeholders. We normally publish your report on the
internet in 15 working days.

If you have any queries about your report or inspection judgements, please
contact our helpline on 08456 404040 within 15 working days of receiving
your report.

Children’s Summary

The children’s summary informs children and young people about the
inspection outcomes. Copies of the children’s summary have been sent
separately to the Registered Individual.

Recommendations

The report contains some recommendations to improve your provision
further. We will check whether you have acted on these recommendations
when you are next inspected.

5CL112 V2 20090604 POVERTOR 1N PRODLE



1
Our Reference SC035277 Page 6

. [
*X XK

Ofs

Statutory requirements

Please read the requirements carefully as you must complete these in order
to meet the Care Standards Act 2000, Children's Homes Regulations 2001
and the National Minimum Standards.

You may find it useful to keep this notice handy, as you may need to refer to
it in the future.

Notice of requirement to improve

We enclose a notice of requirement to improve. Please read this carefully as it
sets out what you must do to improve your Children's Home provision. We
will check whether you have taken suitabie action at our next visit.

James Bridges
Compliance Investigation and Enforcement Team

Page 2 of 7 - SCL112 V2_20090604

ted



Page 62

VT L T 1 AT
PR RO LA T UKY

South
Freshford House Telephene: 08456 404040

Redcliffe Way Fax: 0B456 40 40 49
Bristoi Email: enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk Ste
BS1 6NL Web: www, ofsted.gov.uk

raising standards
22/07/2009 improving lives

Mrs Margaret Ann Lucy Nelson-Cole Our Reference SC035277\C111440
Muswell House

London Borough Of Haringey:

Department Of Social Services

9-11 Coppetts Road

London

N10 1HR

Dear Mrs Nelson-Cole

Statutory requirement notice

You are currently registered by Ofsted to manage a children’s home. This
notice is in relation to your provision registered at:

9-11 Coppetts Road

London

N10 1HR

In order to remain fit for registration you must comply with the requirements
of the Care Standards Act 2000 and the Children’s Homes Regulations 2001
made under that Act.

You are in breach of regulation 34 of the Children’s Homes Regulations 2001
which states:

Review of quality of care
34.- (1) The registered person shall establish and maintain a system for-

(a)  monitoring the matters set out in Schedule 6 at appropriate
intervals; and

(b} improving the quality of care provided in the children's home.

(2)  The registered person shall supply to the Commission a report
in respect of any review conducted by him for the purposes of
paragraph (1), and make a copy of the report available on

S5CL1I70 V1_20050604

.
£y
Ny w¥

PYESTOR N BHOPLYE



Our Reference SC035277\C111440

Page 63

PROTECT-REGULATORY O f’ St e d

request to children accommodated in the home, their parents
and placing authorities.

(3)  The system referred to in paragraph (1) shall provide for
consultation with children accommodated in the home, their
parents and placing authorities.

SCHEDULE 6

Regulation 34(1)

MATTERS TO BE MONITORED BY THE REGISTERED PERSON

1.

0.

In respect of each child accommodated in the children's home,
compliance with the placing authority's plan for the care of the child
(where applicable) and the placement plan.

The deposit and issue of money and other valuables handed in for
safekeeping.

Daily menus.

All accidents and injuries sustained in the home or by children
accommodated there.

Any illnesses of children accommodated in the home.

Complaints in relation to children accommaodated in the home and their
outcomes,

Any allegations or suspicions of abuse in respect of children
accommodated in the home and the outcome of any investigation.

Staff recruitment records and conduct of required checks for new
workers in the home.

Visitors to the home and to children in the home.

10. Notifications of the events listed in Schedule 5.

PROTECT-REGULATORY

Page 2 of 5- 5C1170 V1_20090604



Page 64
Our Reference SC035277\C111440

E T Nt o il T
PROTECT-REGULATORY

11.Any unauthorised absence from the home of a child accommodated
there.

12.The use of measures of control, restraint and discipline in respect of
children accommodated in the home.

13.Risk assessments for health and safety purposes and subsequent
action taken.

14, Medicines, medical treatment and first aid administered to any child
accommodated in the home.

15.1In the case of a qualifying school, the standards of educational
provision.

16.Duty rosters of persons working at the home, and the rosters actually
worked.

17.The home's daily log of events.

18. Fire drills and tests of alarms and of fire equipment.
19.Records of appraisals of employees.

20. Minutes of staff meetings.

Ofsted is of the opinion that you have failed to comply with the requirements
of the law for the following reasons:

During an inspection on 9 July 2008, the inspector noted that there was no
evidence to suggest children's files were audited regularly and several files
needed to be reviewed as a matter of urgency as some of the important
information such as medical information, review minutes and dates were not
available. It was also noted that the matters identified in Schedule 6 had not
been monitored since the last inspection. As a result of this inspection, the
following action was set with a completion date of 14 August 2008:

establish and maintain a system to monitor at appropriate intervals the
matters set out in Schedule 6 and to ensure appropriate care is provided in
the children’s home. (Regulation 34)

Py s TCOEET SN AT
PRGTECT-RECULATORY

Page 3 of 5- SCL170 V1_20090604

*X XK

Ofsted



Our Reference SC035277\C11144 " a9€ 695 L
PROTECT-REGULATORY 0 f"xX'*

ste

A further inspection took place on 10 December 2008, and the inspector
noted that the home did not have a system in place for auditing the home's
records and children's files and there were some gaps in the information
available. This would therefore impact on the registered persons ability to
monitor the matters set out in schedule 6 to the regulations and therefore
improve the quality of care within the home. As a result of this inspection, the
following action was set with a completion date of 16 January 2009:

establish and maintain a system to monitor at appropriate intervals the
matters set out in Schedufe 6 and to ensure appropriate care is provided in
the children’s home. Regulation 341 )(a)b)

At the most recent inspection, the inspector found that the service lacked
robust monitoring systems and strong leadership to improve service
provision.

It was noted that the borough had recently recruited an independent
consultant to assist, review and improve the home's current functioning
levels, however the current systems in place were not allowing the service to
meet the individual children’s needs or secure improvement in the service
provided.

Ofsted requires you to take the following actions in order to comply with the
legislation.

The foliowing actions are to be completed by the date shown Date
Establish and maintain a system for:improving the quality of 01/10/2009
care provided in the home. Regulation 34

If you do not take the action required by the date shown you will be guilty of
an offence and we may prosecute you.

You have the right to make a written representation to Ofsted about any
matter you wish to dispute. You must do this by 31 August 2009. Please
contact the Compliance Investigation and Enforcement Team on 08456 40 40
40 for further details.

We will monitor your compliance with this notice.

If you have any questions please call the telephone number at the top of this
notice.

PROTECT-REGULATORY

Page 4 of 5- SCL170 V1_20090604




Page 6

W‘?{ rMM:i‘ﬁ‘r ? st »m:g:a £ \j“{‘z{
South

Freshford House Telephone: 08456 404040 "x K
Redciiffe Way Fax: 8456 40 40 49 x

Bristol Email: enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk te
BS1 6NL web: www.ofsted.gov.uk

raising standards
22 July 2009 improving lives

Mrs Margaret Ann Lucy Nelson-Cole Our Reference SC035277\C111440
Muswell House

London Borough Of Haringey:

Department Of Social Services

9-11 Coppetts Road

London

N10 tHR

Dear Mrs Nelson-Cole

Statutory requirement notice

You are currently registered by Ofsted to manage a children’s home. This
notice is in relation to your provision registered at:

9-11 Coppetts Road

London

N10 1HR

In order to remain fit for registration you must comply with the requirements
of the Care Standards Act 2000 and the Children’s Homes Regulations 2001
made under that Act.

You are in breach of regulation 5 of the Children’s Homes Regulations 2001
which states:

Review of the statement of purpose and children's guide
5. The registered person shall -

(a)  keep under review and, where appropriate, revise the statement of
purpose and the children's guide;

(b)  notify the Commission of any such revision within 28 days; and

(c)  if the children's guide is revised, supply a copy to each child
accommodated in the home.

;v

|
]
H
LR
£ ‘%%
4
St

SCL170 Vi_20090604 INVESTOR I8 PROPLE



Page 67
Our Reference SC035277\C111440 .ot
*KK

PROTECT-REGULATORY Ofsted

Ofsted is of the opinion that you have failed to comply with the requirements
of the law for the following reasons:

During an inspection on 10 December 2008, it was noted by the inspector
that although the home’s Statement of Purpose had been reviewed in April
2008, it still did not make reference to Ofsted as the regulatory body. As a
result of this inspection, the following action was set with a completion date
of 16 January 2009:

ensure the homes Statement of Purpose is reviewed regularly and includes up
to date information. Regulation 5(a)

At the most recent inspection on 23 June 2009, the inspector noted that the
previous inspection had highlighted that the home's statement of purpose
required further revision. During this inspection it was noted that the
document was not a fully accurate reflection of services offered by the home,
For example, staff confirmed that clinical consultancy is not offered to the
service by the Tavistock Centre as stated. The document states that care
plans, risk assessments and local authority assessments are completed,
however this is not the case. There is little evidence of the service meeting
young people’s 'diverse needs' and some staff supervision and appraisals are
not completed at appropriate intervals. The statement of purpose document
also did not include the relevant qualifications and experience of staff working
in the home.

The inspector also found during this inspection that the home's children's
guide had yet to be issued by the service and that it remained in draft form.
The document was lengthy, with sometimes vague information, particularly in
relation to the information regarding the home's complaints procedure. Staff
commented that creative graphics were yet to be added to the document and
that the home's accompanying 'welcome pack’ was in need of further
development.

Ofsted requires you to take the following action in order to comply with the
legislation.

The following actions are to be completed by the date shown Date
Keep under review and revise where appropriate the 01/10/2009
statement of purpose and the chiidren’s guide (Regulation 5)

PROTECT-REGULATORY

Page 2 of 3- 5CL170 V1_20090604



Page 68

s T e

South Z::_.: ;

8
Freshford House Tefephone: 08456 404040 **x
Redcliffe Way Fax: (08456 40 40 49
Bristol Email: enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk O fste d
BS1 6NL web: www ofsted.gov.uk

raising standards
22/07/2009 improving lives

Mrs Margaret Ann Lucy Nelson-Cole Our Reference SC035277\C111440
Muswell House

London Borough Of Haringey:

Department Of Social Services

9-11 Coppetts Road

London

N10 1HR

Dear Mrs Nelson-Cole

Statutory requirement notice

You are currently registered by Ofsted to manage a children’s home. This
notice is in relation to your provision registered at:

9-11 Coppetts Road
London
N10 1HR

In order to remain fit for registration you must comply with the requirements
of the Care Standards Act 2000 and the Children’s Homes Regulations 2001
made under that Act.

You are in breach of regulation 12 of the Children’s Homes Regulations 2001
which states:

Child's placement plan

12. - (1)  The registered person shall, before providing accommodation
for a child in a children’s home, or if that is not reasonably
practicable, as soon as possible thereafter, prepare in
consultation with the child's placing authority a written plan (in
these Regulations referred to as the "placement plan") for the
child setting out, in particular —

(a) how, on a day to day basis, he will be cared for, and his welfare
safeguarded and promoted by the home;

(b) the arrangements made for his health care and education; and

(c) any arrangements made for contact with his parents, relatives
and friends.

£ T
b i
;? Y
Y
I T AR e RIS R AT AV W
PROTECT-HEGLH ATORY e

SCL170 vi_ 20090604 ISVESTOR IN PROPLE



Page 69
Our Reference SC035277\C111440 e
*RK

PROTECT-REGULATORY Ofsted

Ofsted is of the opinion that you have failed to comply with the requirements
of the law for the following reasons:

During an inspection on 9 July 2008, the inspector noted that not alf children
and young people had a placement plan. The plans that were available were
based on a limited assessment and did not give full details about how
children's needs wouid be addressed. None of the files seen included
completed Looked After Children documents as described on the file index.

As a result of this inspection, the following action was set with a completion
date of 29 August 2008:

ensure that each child has a placement plan on file which includes full details
of the child's need and how the home will meet them. Regulation 12

(L)@)b)(c]

A further inspection was undertaken on 10 December 2008 and the inspector
noted that the placement plans addressed how basic support would be
provided to individual children. Children were aware of the plans for them but
did not think they had participated in developing them. It was found that not
all of the looked after children's documents were fully completed and
placement information records were limited in content. There were no
records to suggest that staff have contacted the relevant social workers for
missing information.

As a result of this inspection, the following action was set with a completion
date of 16 January 2009:

ensure that placement plans include information regarding the overall needs
of children placed and how these will be met. The registered manager shall
seek and take account of the views of children when developing the plan.
Regulation 12(1)(3)

At the most recent inspection on 23 June 2009, the inspector noted that
young people's placement plans did not address their individual needs and
the focal authority care and placement plans were not always present on file
or were incomplete. Two young people's documented placement/care plans
were almost identical in content and did not adequately address young
people's individual needs. This was despite the two young people in guestion
having very differing needs. Care plans also did not address issues of identity,
diversity and equality and were similar in content as the care planning tool
was generic in its format.

PROTECT-REGULATORY

Page 2 of 3- SCL170 V1_20090604



Page 70
Our Reference SC035277\C111440 ag
*KXK

@
o L]
PROTECT-REGULATORY Of St e I

If you do not take the action required by the date shown you will be guilty of
an offence and we may prosecute you.

You have the right to make a written representation to Ofsted about any
matter you wish to dispute. You must do this by 31 August 2009. Please
contact the Compliance Investigation and Enforcement Team on 08456 40 40
40 for further details.

We will monitor your compliance with this notice.

If you have any questions please call the telephone number at the top of this
notice.

Yours sincerely

€ Sup—

Roger Shippam
Director, Children

PROTECT-REGULATORY
Page 3 of 3~ SCL170 V1_20090604



Page /1

PROTECT-REGULATORY

South

Freshiord House Telephene: (B456 404040 x x
Redcliffe Way Fax: (0B456 40 46 49 x

Bristol Email: enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk te
BS1 6NL web: www.ofsted.gov.uk

raising standards
22 July 2009 impraving lives

Mrs Margaret Ann Lucy Nelson-Cole Our Reference SC035277\C111440
Muswell House

London Borough Of Haringey:

Department Of Social Services

9-11 Coppetts Road

London

NiQ 1HR

Dear Mrs Nelson-Cole

Statutory requirement notice

You are currently registered by Ofsted to manage a children’s home. This
notice is in relation to your provision registered at:

9-11 Coppetts Road
London
N10 1HR

In order to remain fit for registration you must comply with the requirements
of the Care Standards Act 2000 and the Children’s Homes Regulations 2001
made under that Act.

You are in breach of regulation 27 of the Children’s Homes Regulations 2001
which states:

Employment of staff
4) The registered person shall ensure that all persons employed by him -
(a) receive appropriate training, supervision and appraisal;

Ofsted is of the opinion that you have failed to comply with the requirements
of the law for the following reasons:

During an inspection on 10 December 2008, the inspector examined two staff
files and found that neither included details of supervision since the last
inspection. One file included details of a recent appraisal the other file
showed the last appraisal was over a year ago.

£ Ry
%

¥

\%@ P

Pat

{""!“ """'““‘“’”"’¥ 3‘"‘/"”"‘," H 2‘*;“‘;‘;" Y
FROEUT-REGULATORY

SCLI70 Vi 20090608 PVESTOR 1% PEOPLE



Page 72

Our Reference SCO35277\C111440
PROTECT-REGHLATORY

As a result of this inspection, the following action was set with a completion
date of 16 January 2009:

ensure staff receive regular supervision and yearly appraisais which are
reviewed regularly. Regulation 27(4)(a)

At the most recent inspection on 23 June 2009, the inspecter noted that
support and informal supervision via lire managers was good, but the
frequency of formal supervision and appraisals for some staff members was
irregular. This was particularly the case for waking night sta’f. This issue was
highlighted as a weakness at the previous inspection as it is important to
ensure staff competencies are of an acceptable standard.

Ofsted requires you to take the following actions in order to comply with the
legislation.

The following actions are to be completad by the date shown  Date
Ensure staff receive reqular supervision and appraisals which  01/10/2009
are reviewed regularly. Regulation 27(4)(a) -

If you do not take the action required by the date shown you will be guilty of
an offence and we may prosecute YOu.

You have the right to make a written representation to Ofsted about any
matter you wish to dispute. You must do this by 31 August 2009. Please
contact the Compiiance Investigation and Enforcement Tearr on 08456 40 40
40 for further details.

We will monitor your compliance with this notice.

If you have any questions please call the telephone number at the top of this
notice.

Page 2 of 3- SCL1YG Vi _20990604




Our Reference SC035277\C111440 | 29€ 73
XK

PROTECT-REGULATORY 0 f S t i

Yours sincerely

£ Sup—

Roger Shippam
Director, Children

Page 3 of 3- SCL170 Vi_20090604



tandards
lives

raising s

improving

m«% @w
bt
%Mﬁ it
FRaR
ResmRy
,w&e@ﬁ

Pt

Mw RS

seaeiime

A

il

gﬁgv,m
W
P

Wﬁ%m

3

R

)

st

Page 74

R

b ;

g




Page 75

Ofsted is a government department that inspects many places including children’s
homes.

© An Ofsted inspector visited your home to see how well you are tooked after and
- whether the home is run properly. This is a summary for you about what the
inspector found. Thank you for helping with the inspection and telling us your views.

This summary explains what the inspector found, what your home does well and
what it could do better. The inspector then makes judgements, such as outstanding;
good or satisfactory. The lowest judgement is inadequate which means changes
need to happen quickly. The inspector also looks at how well your homme supports

differences and how fair things are for averyone living in the home.

When you have read the summary you may want to read the full report. If you want
to read the full report please call 08456 404040 and tell us the number of your home
which is SC035277. You can also email us on enquiries@ofsied.gov.uk to ask for a
copy to be emailed to you: please include your home’s number (5C035277) and
name (Muswell House).




Page 76

Staff encourage young people to live healthy lifestyles even when young people are
reluctant to keep health care appointments. A nurse visits the home regularly to
check that young people's health is good and to offer them advice. Young people's
care plans do not always state their health care needs. Staff keep very good records
of young people's medicines but sometimes to do return unused medicines back to
the pharmacy.

Young say they feel quite safe in the home's building and there are good health and
safety systems in place. Incidents of bullying, accidents, allegations against staff and
extreme behaviour hardly ever occur and everyone is aware of what action is taken
when young people go missing. The home keeps a record of complaints made but
not all young people's complaints are recorded in the complaints log. Young people
would find it useful if the home's complaints procedure is written in more detail so it
is clear exactly what happens when complaints are made about the home or staff.
Young people's information is largely kept confidential. The home has good facilities
for washing and bathing.

Key workers discuss with young people their individual needs and staff feel that
young people’s education should be taken very seriously. Friends and family are free
to visit the home and young people have an opportunity to share their views about
the home.

Staff keep some rooms in the home locked during the daytime, young people do not
like this. The home is generally well decorated and furnished but some rooms get too
hot in warm weather.

Staff provide information to young people and others about the purpose of the
home; some of this information require some changes. Staff care about young
peopie and receive training and support. They have good qualifications and
experience of working with young people. Staff is working other professionals to
improve the quality of care provided by the home.

© Crown Copyright 2009



Page 77

Jobeuew
SOWOH 8y
BUUOAA (upne yeis )
$9)BOlYI1B0 JO BAISN[oul Byl Bulure. |
Jobeuew
SOWOH uoisiaiadns jo Ayjenb ayy mainey
9] /UUOAA
‘uosyueld sejep [esiesdde 185
e1ol)ed SIN
aq [|m Jabeuepy Pa2I0jud 8q 0} AJl[IgeIun02aYy
pajuloddy "HIYs uo
MBN 3yl " 6002 Bunyiom yes |je 0} Joddns pasnooj
ysnbny w01 9y} yse)} ein Buuoyuow Apjeem vy
wo.4 abueys ‘Aeig
juswabeuew uoisiniadns enedos|) ‘uoisinJadns soueape Jeak suQ
B Udd( sey 60 80 ubl Ul paouspIAg QUUOAA
alay} Jey) ajou "usnb ‘peaye Jeak | :siosinedng "Sojep uoisiAiadns syuswalinbal
asea|d :aN ¥oam [euonippe € 10} pay00q Jo A|Buipioooe pasipe aq 0} 4eis 90UBPING
uosyue.4 ue :gN | ueaqaney sajep | Jebeuepy ayl [esiesdde ‘uoisiniadns ‘Buiuresy 0} paaN
Bloljed 60°0L°L 60'8°¢ uoisinadng ay Aq pa Auiep ulepsosy/Alelp uoisinadng djeudoidde anigoal yeis v |l 4eis
(e)(r)L2
Bay
Aq yoealq
paje|dwon uone|dwod ui ale
Aq saul peaq | £Aq pasio pasodoad jey} uo
palojyiuoly [sE1 T T) 0} puodsay SOWOH Aq woypm uayeuapun aqg 0} uonady aly1vadg sanss| nenboy

LDV ey 1opun opewt [()(g Suonen3ay SWoH S UAIP[IY)

o} pue GO(Z IOV Spiepuels a1e)) oy Jo sjuawarinbar oy yirm Ajdwos 3snw no& uorensigal 10y 31j urewal o} J9pIo uf) sjuswaiinbay A1oinjelg
ISNOH [[PMSNIA
uondddsuy passjO 6007 dung 3y) 03 suodsay




Page 78

60/80/wc | S8oussqe pastioyineun
60/80/wc) Jodal pJemay
60/80/wc | spodau uoljoues
60/80/wc) JodaJ yuapiou|
60/80/uc | Jewlioj podal Appeapn
60/80/wCl Buiuueyd 1061e) Ao
eljedos|n
60/80/wZ L QUUOAA souepinb pue sueid
:slosinjedng Juswageld s,uaipjiyo [eulsjul Uy
80'8'6¢
:Buimoyjo} "Spesu [euoneonpg pue sem uone|dwoo
8y uaAIb 8 [IIm Jexiom yoe3 Yjjesy Jisyj sepnjout [[im siy L o} sjeg
"wisy} JesW [[im
“WIYS Yoea uo UBAIB aq [|IM UOISSAS | awoy ay} Moy pue pasu s pjiyo 80/./6 U0
Jabeueyy uoisiniadns passnooy yse) Jejnbay U} JO S|IBIap [N} SapNjoul pasies sem siy |
uosyuel4 6087 (V) ay Aq pa "SHSE) PoIedo||e aq Isnwl JayJom foy) yoiym | uo ueld Juswsde|d sue|d Juswaoeid | () (q) (e)
eldljed 60/8/6¢ 60'8°1¢ $3|1} )98Y) € Sey p|Iyo yoes jey} ainsug S.uaip|iyo |-Z) boy
(V) pajeAnoy
Aq (2) yoeaiq
paje|dwor uonajdwos ui ase
Aq saul peaq | Aqpaisio pasodoud jeyj uo
paiojiuop paIsio 0} puodsay sawoH | Aq woym uayeMapun aq 0} uoioy aly10adg sanss| lje|nbay

LDV ey 1opun opewt [()(g Suonen3ay SWoH S UAIP[IY)

o} pue GO(Z IOV Spiepuels a1e)) oy Jo sjuawarinbar oy yirm Ajdwos 3snw no& uorensigal 10y 31j urewal o} J9pIo uf) sjuswaiinbay A1oinjelg
ISNOH [[PMSNIA
uondddsuy passjO 6007 dung 3y) 03 suodsay




BUUOAA bunoA /syuieidwon ‘Ausianiq ‘60 1snbne opnjour suefd juowaoed o1om o1doad
:slosivadng | 9 49 paouspias jaidoad BunoA yum uoneynsuo) oY) ey} AINSUH60/2/91 Sunok oy
ToSeuey 6002 600 eloljed a|doad BunoA ay} yiim uole}nsuod Jo 8oUBPIAF | AQq PaJo[dwios oq ISNU SUONOY | JBY) OUIPIAD (0)
oYL Jsnbny yi| snsny 01 | 8yphq pe] 80/T1/01 oy uo uonoadsur oy, Jo e (a) (e) ) Boy
BuiobuQ “spasu a1uy)3 /epinb sjdoad
esedos|) BunoA /syuieidwon ‘Ausisniq ‘60 1snbne
BUUOAA © ;9 paouapIAg /ajdoad BunoA yym uoneynsuo) way} 1snbny w6z Aq
:siosinjadng g|doad BunoA ayy yim uoNe)NSUOI JO SOUBPIAT 198W ||IM BWIOY 8y} MOy pue paau | paje|dwiod aq 0}
S,PIIYo 8y} JO s|iejsp ||n} sepnjoul 60 sunr
6002 600C eloljed 4} yolym 8y uo ueld juswadeld pEg B} Uo aoeld (0)
Jabeuey ay| 1snbny y| 1snbny w0l ay1 Aq pa uonelnbal jeaw sue|d juswaoeld ||e 1ey yo8yo B Sey p|Iyo yoes jey} ainsug %00} uonoadsu| (9) (e) z1 Bay
D ueyd ayy buidojeaap uaym uaip|iyo
N~ 60/80/wZ] Y eqedos|n JUSWINOOP UONE)NSUO UsAIB 8q 0) JJels yoeg 3} JO SMAIA 8U} JO JUNOJIE BYE) 60/1/91 a1
() uo Bunsaw SUUOAA pue %aas |leys Jabeuew paisisibas | sem uonejdwod
((3)] yeis Bunssw | :siosinadng a|jdoad BunoA ayy yum uoie}NSU0I JO 8OUBPIAT 9y '1aW aq ||IM 3say} Moy pue Jo} ayeq
Dna passNI0} %SE) pade|d UaJp|Iyo 8y} JO Spaau ||BIeA0 | "uondadsul sy}
B 6002 ur uoisinJadns Bloled gouepinb | ey} Buipsebal uonewloyul apnjoul ul pasies sem (0)
Jabeuepy sy 1snbny yirL 8U0 0} BUQ ay Aq pa pue suejd Juswade(d s,usIp|iyd [eulsul ue sue|d Juswiaoe(d ay} 1ey) ainsug SIY} 80/Z1/01 (9) (e) z1 By
djep
Aq uonajdwos
pajsjdwosn £q paisio pasodoud
Aq palojiuop £q ajeq 0} puodsay juswabeuepy £q woym uaye) aq 0} uonay aly1vadg sanss| uoljejnbay
60/80/wC) SJUBLUSSBSSE Y%SIY

o} pue GO(Z IOV Spiepuels a1e)) oy Jo sjuawarinbar oy yirm Ajdwos 3snw no& uorensigal 10y 31j urewal o} J9pIo uf) sjuswaiinbay A1oinjelg

LDV ey 1opun opewt [()(g Suonen3ay SWoH S UAIP[IY)

uondddsuy passjO 6007 dung 3y) 0 Isuodsay

ISNOY [[PMSNAT




Page 80

uoAI3
9q [[1m Syse)

"UoAI3

(101D ) S9dUISqe pasLIOyINeU)

(uosyoN 101e31BA) *G S[NPAYDS UOIBOYIION
(KAo107 ) SI0JISIA

( IoSeuepy ) SPI0OAI JUIUNINIOAI JJBIS
(103eueyy ) 9snqe pajoadsns Jo suone3oy
( 198euey) swureidwo)

( eyseyeN ) Suuojiuowr ssouj[|

( Auo], ) sounfur pue sjudIPIOE [V
((ren) pre s1g

(A1193]) snuow Ajreq

103euely) -oyes uf ‘sojqenyea sajdoad Suno x
ueld

Suroed pue sjuored

pue ULIp[IYd Y}
)14 UOIJBI[NSU0))

9 o[NpPaYDs
PaIS}Q 03 uone[al
ur J[qe[IeA®
are syrodax
Jo Adoo oy amsuyg
papraoid

Jo uoneoo[e oq M Sy[se} esjedos|n Juawdded uaspyiyo/uerd o180 oY) YIIm douerdwo) o1ed Jo Ayenb
oy Isndny 11 Jo uoneoo[e BUUOAA ‘wred) Y} Jo oty Suraroxdway
I08eueA oy L, o ysnsny wll :slosinadng SIdQUIdW 0) PIJB3IIP 9q UL $HSE) JO JdquINU Y
elled auy Aq pa :Surmoroy 9 9[NPAYOS Jopun SUIQ)SAS
o3 10J paonpoid 9q [[IM WRISAS FuLIo)IUOW Y SI19138W SULIOIUOA] urejurej € uonen3ay
91doad SunoAk
esedos|) [1e 01 parjddns aq 3snw sOpIng USIP[IYD PIsIARY opm3
SUUOAA SABp 8 UIYIIM UOISSILIWIOD 3} AJIION UQIP[IYD
:siosinjadng opm3 uaIp[Iyo pue asodind
IoFeue oy, 60/01/1 sndny 01 BI0LIEd 8y} Aq pa pue asodind Jo JUSWIAIL)S AU} ISIAI PUB MIIADY | 9OIAISS oU} AJLIe]) | JO JUdWdIR)S | G uonen3oy
Aq Jjep
Aq padwo) uondrdwod
PA.I0JIUOTA] Aeq pasodoag Aq WOy A\ udy B} 9q 0} Uy dynadg sanss| uonen3NY
ueld
o3 Surdo[eAdp uaym UIP[IYD
JO SMOIA U} JO JUNOOJE B} PUE
393s [[eys JoFeuew paI)sI3al
QUL "J0W 9q [[IM SAY) MOY SIUAWINOOP
BuiobuQ pue pased uaIpyyo jo spasu poywury
esjedos|) "spaau ojuy}3 /apinb ajdoad [[e19A0 913 Jurpae3al uoreuLIojul ‘paAjoAUl

LDV ey 1opun opewt [()(g Suonen3ay SWoH S UAIP[IY)

o} pue GO(Z IOV Spiepuels a1e)) oy Jo sjuawarinbar oy yirm Ajdwos 3snw no& uorensigal 10y 31j urewal o} J9pIo uf) sjuswaiinbay A1oinjelg

ISNOY [[PMSNAT

uondddsuy passjO 6007 dung 3y) 0 Isuodsay




Page 81

Jrenbope
(uorssas Sururer; yoed Jo uonddwoo pue pajoajord yireay
uo uosiad FunoA yoes 10} SpIemay)uduogeur pue pajowod Jo uonovoxd
‘pajordwos aq 03 dn 193uy ‘QuaISAH pooy ‘s3uen) pue st ojdoad Sunok pue
60/01/10 | ompayos Sururer} | mo[[oj 03 e | SulA[ng ‘[0Yoo[y pue Sni( ‘UOnBINPS YJeay [BNXdS pue UdIp[IYd JO uonowoxd
1o3euBRIN OU L [euonIppe Uy enedos)) ‘pre isa1] -o'1 ‘ojdoad Sunok oy 10y Sururer) osnoy U] | YI[EIY Y} dINSuy AL (1) 0z 809
yuowooerd
‘suerd [oed Jo uruurdaq
yuowooe[d oy o Je pausdIs
s uonounfuod -9jdoad 3uno£ a3 [[& 10} SULIOJ JUSUISSISSE pue 991dwos
Ul POMOIALL osInN DV'1 ey ayp arepdn pue 939[dwoo [[1m sInN 8T 9y T, 9q Jsnut pIIyo yedy
9q os[e [[Im [oeo 10J Sp10021 | Jo uonodoid
SIY [, “Juswnoop "paxj00q ST ISINN DV Y} WOJJ JSIA © pue y3edy "oy uo uerd pue
3uro3uo sanndaq uerond spuad ‘do [800] Y} YIM PaI)SIFaI oIk ireay e sey priyo uonowold
J33eUBR\ AU, 60/01/10 ue 9q [[1M SIY L, / s1ayI0M A9y o1doad 3unoX ot jey) SuLMSUd 3q [[IM INIOM ADY [OB9 Jey} dInsuyg YL (1) 0z 3o%
Aq Jep
Aq padwo) uondrdwod
PA.I0IIUOTA] Aq e pasodoag Aq WOy A\ udyB) 9q 0} U0y dynadg sanss| uonens3NY

(surewrey) ) ‘s3unoow sojdoad Suno x
(Ando() "oy sordoad Suno x
(103eueyy ) ‘sSurjoow JJels JO SOINUIA

(103eueyy) ‘sesrerddy

(1rewrey] ) juowrdmbs sy o1r g
(Ando(/sia8euepy) s)uaAd Jo 301 A[req
(suuoa & ) sidiso1 Ang

(ourewrey)) ) uorsiaoid [euoneonpy
(enedos[) ) JUSWIIBAI) [BOIPIW PUB SOUIDIPIA
(Anda(q) £195es pue Yi[eay JUSWSSISSE JSIY
(193eury ) JUIBIISAI PUB [0JJUOD JO SQINSBIIN

LDV ey 1opun opewt [()(g Suonen3ay SWoH S UAIP[IY)

o} pue GO(Z IOV Spiepuels a1e)) oy Jo sjuawarinbar oy yirm Ajdwos 3snw no& uorensigal 10y 31j urewal o} J9pIo uf) sjuswaiinbay A1oinjelg

ISNOY [[PMSNAT

uondddsuy passjO 6007 dung 3y) 0 Isuodsay




Page 82

- sampaosoid pue Aorjod
[euIoju] oy} pue 9ouepIng pue opadoid sjurejdwod
o} 10J uonBIUSWNIOP pue SuI3Fo[ sawoy Y[,
ampaooid

ampasoxd
syurejdwoos sawoy
o) sauI[INo Jey)
UONJBULIOJUT USPLIM
oArsuoyaIdwos e

jure[dwoo suosiod Sunok oy 01 UONNALIUOD oAaey 9jdoad Sunok -2Inpadoad
Jo3eueWw oY |, 600T 1990390 1 J33euB AU, e Supyew a1 9jdoad 3unoL ay3 yim uonensuo)) ) Jey} unsuyg syurejdwo)) 7 39y
P9IB[IIUdA
K1oyenbape
"QuIoY AU} UIYIIM SI SWO0IPq “UIP[IYO
Seale [BI00S 9U) IO} SOUO [BUON)IPPE PUEB SWO0IPAq sordoad Sunok oy} Jo
IoFeue oy L, parordwo) 600C dunf ¢ 1IR3 IR oy} [[e 10} paseyoind pue paIdpIO U SABY SUB,] o3 Jey} dInsug SpPadu yIeoy 1€ 8oy
UOI}BOIpaW
pasnun jo [esodsip
‘[esodsip 10y Aoewreyd ot 103 doerd
o[} O} POUNAI UAQ SEY JeY) UOT)BIIPAUIL [[8 PIOIAI ul sjuowogueLIe UIP[IYD
60/W8 1€l enedod[) pue JIpne [[Im yorym doe[d Ul Wa)sAs Suriojruowr o[qelns aIe oy} Jo 17 89y
Io3eue oy I, Suro3uQ 60/80/€0 QUUOA & ¢ BIOLR] B OARY [[IA UONEIIPIW pasnun Jo [esodsip ay [, Q19U Jey) 2InSuy | SPAdU Y[eoH

UQAIS 9SIAPE [)[eaY [[& UO
o113 sejdoad 3unok oy ayepdn (1M asanN DV YL
‘sue[q Judwdoe[d pajejdwo)
-9jdoad 3unoA yum uoneynsuo))

sued areo
uo J[qe[IeA® SI
SPaau YI[BaY I}
IN0QE UOHBUWLIOJUT

1DV 18y} I9pun opewl [ SUonen3ay SWOH S, USIP[IYD
o} pue GO(Z IOV Spiepuels a1e)) oy Jo sjuawarinbar oy yirm Ajdwos 3snw no& uorensigal 10y 31j urewal o} J9pIo uf) sjuswaiinbay A1oinjelg

ISNOY [[PMSNAT

uondddsuy passjO 6007 dung 3y) 0 Isuodsay




Page 83

raising standards
improving lives

i
A &

b g

-

iy
&




Page 84

Summary: what the inspector found

Staff of the home make sure that young people live healthy lifestyies. Staff
encourage young people to register with health care services and keep
appointments. The home has useful health care information posted on the home's
notice boards and a nurse visits the home regularly.

Staff are careful in making sure that young people have the medicines they need and
staff keep good records of what is taken and when, A cook prepares meals and these
are healthy and what young people say they like.

Staff make efforts to keep young people safe while they are living at the home. Child
protection issues are taken seriously, as are complaints. There are good systems in
place to try to find young people when they are missing from the home and staff do
not allow bullying to happen. The staff group encourage young people to behave
well.

The house is generally well decorated and is welcoming, although some carpets need
changing. Young people have their own bedrooms and make use of the home's
computer and quiet room. Staff make sure that all fire equipment is frequently
checked and CCTV is in use outside the building.

Staff provide services that young people need. Young people are free to have visitors
at the home and staff encourage friends and family members to visit. Staff are
interested in how they can improve young people’s lives while they are living at the
home and are keen for young people to do well educationally.

Young people receive good information about the home when they arrive and the
new children's guide is very creative. Staff share good relationships with young
people and receive good training, although some records are not always complete.
Most staff have work in the home for along time and have good qualifications. Staff
like to see young people do weil,

© Crown Copyright 2009



Page 85

Haringey Park Children's Home

Inspection report for Children's Home

Ofs

ted

Unique reference number
Inspection date
Inspector

Type of inspection

SC036560
16/06/2009

Sandra Jacobs-Walls
Key

Setting address

Telephone number
Email

Registered person
Registered manager
Responsible individual
Date of last inspection

32 Haringey Park, LONDON, N8 9JD

020 8341 9183

London Borough of Haringey
Neil Harriott

Position Vacant

12/01/2009



Page 86

Inspection Report: Haringey Park Children's Home, 16/06/2009 2of 11

© Crown copyright 2009

Website: www.ofsted.qov.uk

This document may be reproduced in whole or in part for non-commercial educational purposes, provided that
the information quoted is reproduced without adaptation and the source and date of publication are stated.

You can obtain copies of The Children Act 2004, Every Child Matters and The Natlonal Minimum Standards for
Children’s Services from: The Stationery Office (TSO) PO Box 29, St Crispins, Duke Street,
Norwich, NR3 1GN. Tel: 0870 600 5522. Online ordering: www.1so.co.uk/bookshop




Page 87

Inspection Report: Haringey Park Children's Home, 16/06/2009 3ofil

About this inspection

The purpose of this inspection is to assure children and young people, parents, the
public, local authorities and government of the quality and standard of the service
provided. The inspection was carried out under the Care Standards Act 2000.

This report details the main strengths and any areas for improvement identified
during the inspection. The judgements included in the report are made in relation to
the outcomes for children set out in the Children Act 2004 and the relevant National
Minimum Standards for the service.

The inspection judgements and what they mean

Outstanding:  this aspect of the provision is of exceptionally high quality
Good: this aspect of the provision is strong

Satisfactory:  this aspect of the provision is sound

Inadequate:  this aspect of the provision is not good enough



Page 88

Inspection Report: Haringey Park Children's Home, 16/06/2009 : 4of 11

Service information

Brief description of the service

This children's home is owned and run by the host local authority. The home is a
detached, three storey property with a garden to the rear.

The service works with at maximum eight young people between the ages of 13 and
16 years who have experienced frequent breakdowns of placement and who need
structured care plans and high levels of staff support and supervision. The service
aims to provide planned task-focused care for young people with challenging
behaviour and to prepare young people to return home, live independently or in an
alternative placement.

Six young people are currently resident at the home, however none were available to
participate in the inspection process. |

Summary
The overall quality rating is satisfactory.
This is an overview of what the inspector found during the inspection.

The purpose of the unannounced key inspection was to assess the home against key
National Minimum Standards and to gauge the home's success in addressing
weaknesses highlighted at the last inspection. All six outcome areas were assessed.

The previous inspection had highlighted deficiencies in staff's consistent recording of
information, the availability of the home's children's guide, staff's consistency in
alerting Ofsted to significant events and adequate follow up to monitoring visits.
Since the last inspection improvement is noted in some record keeping, but not all,
the children’s guide is now available on site and Ofsted are appropriately informed of
significant events. Staff do not promptly address recommendations made during
monitoring visits.

In addition, weaknesses are identified in staff's recording of young people's risk
assessments and individual plans, complaints and missing person's log. Carpeting in
some areas of the home is in unsatisfactory condition.

Staff of the home make good efforts to keep young people healthy and safe while in
placement and pay good attention to their educational needs. The staff group is well
established and work effectively with young people. In recent months an
independent consultant has been recruited to assist improve service provision at the
home.



Page 89

Inspection Report: Haringey Rark Children's Home, 16/06/2009 5of 11

Improvements since the last inspection

The previous inspection resulted in eight requirements, many of which related to
staff's documentation of information. There is noted improvement in staff's recording
of accidents and incidents, young people's medication records and health care
information. Notification to Ofsted of significant events is appropriate and the revised
children's guide is available to young people on site. Outstanding however, is staff's
consistent recording of risk assessment information, complaints and fridge and
freezer temperatures. Staff do not promptly address recommendations made during
monitoring visits.

Helping children to be healthy
The provision is good.

Staff encourage young people living at the home to live healthy lifestyles. Young
people’s individual case files evidence that routine health care services are readily
accessed as are specialist services. The borough's looked after children's nurse is
available to young people on site on a weekly basis and as needed. Staff also
encourage young people to attend the borough's mobile health care clinic '4YP' which
is situated locally. The home displays useful health information on notice boards
around the house and the newly developed children's guide also contains useful
health care information. Key work sessions and file summary information routinely
highlight young people's health needs and how these are to be addressed. Staff of
the service work productively with local mental health professionals to address young
people's mental health support needs.

The home has comprehensive medication policies and procedures in place. The
previous inspection had highlighted deficiencies in staff's recording of young people's
medication regime. Staff confirm that since the last inspection the issue of
medication had been discussed and new protocols developed. The review of one
young person's medication records evidence marked improvement in the accuracy of
recording of key information. Staff document medication action records sheets Clearly
and consistently. This supports safe medication practices that are in compliance with
the home's written medication procedures.

Young people's medication is appropriately stored in a locked medication cabinet in
the staff office. Only medication in current use is evident in the cabinet and the
home has good systems in place for the disposal of unused medication. There are
good monitoring systems in place to avoid medication error.

The home employs a cook to prepare the majority of meals provided to residents.
Young people have access to weekly meal plans and staff encourage them to
participate in decision making around meal choices. The home offers a nutritious and
varied choice of meals, which caters to the known preferences of the young people.
So, for example, culturally appropriate meals such as Halal meat are made available,
Staff encourage young people to prepare meals independently of the staff group and
this allows for a range iof differing ethnic and cultural foods to be experienced by all



Page 90

Inspection Report: Haringey Park Children's Home, 16/06/200% ‘ Bofll

young people.

Protecting children from harm or neglect and helping them stay safe
The provision is satisfactory.

Young people's information is confidentially handled by staff and young people's
privacy is respected. Staff have access to written guidance and practice procedures
that promote young people's privacy. These include protocols with regard to staff
entering young people's bedrooms, conducting room observation and emergency
room searches. Young people are able to lock their individual bedrooms and all
rooms contain lockable storage for their personal belongings. There is an adequate
number of washing, bathing and toilet facilities within the home to ensure young
people have privacy when washing. Young people have access to the home's 'quiet’
room to make private telephone calls and there are plans in place for the encased
communal phone box to facilitate incoming, private calls only.

With regard to young peopie’s information, case files and other key information is
kept locked and secure in the staff office; young people have limited access to this
space. Young people’s case files have a dedicated section marked 'confidential' and
highly sensitive information is kept locked separately in the manager's office. Staff
have access to written guidance that ensures that young people understand that in
the event of the disclosure of information of a child protection nature that this
information must be shared with the home's manager and other involved
professionals.

With regards to complaints, the provider has a complaints procedure in place,
however staff are unable to locate a copy on site. This is important to ensure that
young people have prompt access to current, detailed information about the home's
complaints procedure. Some complaints information is available in the home's
children's guide and notice board. Young peopie also have access to the contact
details of national and local child advocacy groups. The previous inspection had
highlighted weaknesses in staff's consistent recording of complaints in the home's
central complaints log. This is important to ensure there is a record of complaints
made against the service and the action taken to resolve the complaint. A similar
issue is noted during this inspection, the requirement is therefore repeated.

Staff encourage young people to remain safe while in placement at the home. The
service has comprehensive child protection and safeguarding policies in place and
staff confirm that child protection and safeguarding training is periodically offered by
the local authority. There have been no recorded incidents of a child protection
nature since the last inspection.

The service has comprehensive and robust anti-bullying policiesiin place; these are
well known to young people and staff. Information about the home's 'zero tolerance’



Our Reference SC036560 Page 91 &
| * XK

Ofsted

Notice of requirement to improve

Ofsted has judged your Children's Home provision as not meeting a
regulation. This notice contains details of actions you need to take to bring
about the necessary improvement by the dates given,

Action Date

ensure that staff and young people have access to the 01/09/2009
home's current complaints procedure on site and that

received complaints and how they are resolved are fully

documented (Regulation 24)

ensure that staff document comprehensive and accurate 01/09/2009
information in the home's 'missing person's' log (Regulation
16)

ensure that staff consistently document young people's risk  01/09/2009
assessments (Regulation 11)

ensure that all parts of the home, especially the reception (1/09/2009
area carpet are kept clean and well maintained.
(Regulation 31)

ensure that the quality of care provided by the home is 01/09/2009
improved by staff promptly addressing weaknesses ‘
highlighted in monthly monitoring reports. (Regulation 34)

ensure that staff consistently record daily fridge and 01/09/2009
freezer temperatures. (Regulation 23)

You should have completed those actions with dates that have already
passed.

An inspector may carry out an announced or unannounced visit to check that
the necessary improvements have been made. If you have not carried out the
required action or what you have done has had little impact, we may take
further enforcement measures.

You must carry out these actions by the date(s) given otherwise Ofsted may
take further action,.

You will need to let us:know when you have carried out all of the actions, by
completing the attached reply form and returning it to Ofsted at the above
address. If we have not heard from you by the date given, we will contact
you again.

Page 3 of 6 - SCL112 V2_ 20090604



Page 92

Inspection Reports Haringey Park Children's Home, 16/06/200% 7 of 11

stance for bullying is regularly discussed at residents’ meetings. Staff document
these well, all incidents of bullying and action taken to address incidents. In most
instances, staff use key work sessions to address issues of bullying with individual
young people.

The home has sound policies and procedures in place to address young people who
abscond from the home without permission. As a feature of local protocols, staff
inform the police after young people have been assessed as being 'missing’ for a
significant length of time. This practice is known to young people as it features in the
home's children's guide. However records indicate that staff's documentation of key
information when young people are absent without permission is inconsistent and
not in adherence with the home's written guidance.

The home has comprehensive policies and procedures in place that address
behavioural management issues. There have been no incidents of young people
being restrained by staff since the last inspection. Staff makes use of sanctions and
rewards to encourage young people's sustained acceptable behaviour. The home's
children’s guide contains useful information that details expectations and
consequences of young people's behaviour. Staff maintain good records of rewards
young people obtain. Where instances of unacceptabie behaviour occur, staff make
use of the home's sanctions policy. Staff are aware of sanctions that are permissible
as these are detailed at the front of the home's sanctions log. Sanctions imposed
since the last inspection are fair and appropriate in relation to the noted behaviour.
Staff maintain good records of all sanctions imposed and these are monitored via the
home's monthly quality assurance visits,

The home's premises provide young people with security and physical safety. Staff
adhere to stringent health and safety procedures which are supported by
comprehensive written guidance. A designated staff member is responsible for the
monitoring of the home's key health and safety procedures and staff document
relevant information consistently. General health and safety risk assessments are
evident as are fire assessments. The service has sound fire precaution measures in
place, staff check fire equipment and emergency provisions such as the home's
emergency lighting system on a very reqular basis. Staff also ensure that building
evacuation procedures: are frequent and that outcomes are recorded. Young people’s
security is further promoted by the home's use of closed circuit television, which
views all entry points, the periphery of the entire building and the roof top.

The previous two inspections highlighted staff's inconsistent recording of the home's
fridge and freezer temperatures; this is also the case at this inspection. Good food
hygiene practices are important to ensure no health risk is posed to young people or
staff. This is a repeat requirement.

With regard to the vetting of staff, the service has in place sound recruitment and
selection polices in addition to comprehensive equal opportunities policies. This
standard was not assessed during the inspection as the provider maintains staff
records off site,



Page 93

Inspection Report: Haringey Park Children’s Home, 16/06/2009 Bof 11

Helping children achieve well and enjoy what they do
The provision is good.

Young people receive individual support when needed and staff document this on
care plans. Staff provide good illustration of the very specific needs of some of the
young peopie currently resident at the home and how the service was able to
creatively meet these needs. For example staff indicate that the service offered one-
to-one support to one young person, who had been excluded from school a few
weeks prior to taking academic examinations. Staff's keen negotiation with
educational professionals and the offer of additional support to the young person
satisfied the school's concern for the safety of others. Staff escorted the young
person to and from school and devised an individualised lunchtime package that
facilitated the young person's appropriate presence at the school. Staff remained
alongside with the young person in the examination, again, to satisfy the concerns of
school personnel. Staff are clear that without this provision, the young person would
have been prohibited from sitting key academic examinations. Staff were able to
provide a number of differing scenarios that illustrate the service's ability to meet the
individual needs of residents. i

Young people's educational achievement is considered a priority of the service.
Individual case files have a dedicated section that focuses solely on educational
issues, and staff have access to comprehensive policies that promote educational
attainment. The staff group work effectively with internal and external educational
professionals and files evidence good communication between the two. Files also
detail information about young people's educational progress and so, for exampile,
contain academic progress and attendance reports, minutes of personal educational
planning meetings and others.

Young people have access to a tutor on site on a weekly basis to assist them with an
array of educational and learning support. Staff are experienced in working
effectively with young people who are excluded from mainstream school; some
current residents do not attend educational or training establishments but receive
home tuition services on site. The home is well equipped to meet young people’s
educational needs; the service provides a computer room and a range of learning
and examination reference material. Each young person's bedroom has a desk for
the completion of homework; alternatively, the home's 'quiet’ room can also be used
for this purpose.

Helping children make a positive contribution
The provision is good.

Young people resident at the home have their general needs assessed well and there
is good documentation of this on file. In most cases, field social work staff complete
comprehensive 'core’ assessments or in some case, staff of the borough's residential
assessment centre complete young people's assessments. Staff of the home
however, do not consistently complete written risk assessments once young people



Page 94

Inspection Report: Haringey Park Chitdren's Home, 16/06/2009 Sof 1]

are in placement at the home. This is important to highlight and help minimise
known or potential risks posed to young people's safety.

Young people's needs and development are reviewed regularly and their progress is
monitored well. Files evidence monthiy summary reports that highlight placement
progress and any changing needs. Staff make use of the home's newly devised
running log that charts young people's significant daily activities. This forms the basis
of staff's monthly summary reports that specifically highlights young people's
progress and placement issues. Statutory looked after children reviews aiso focuses
on the home's provision of care and placement progress.

Staff encourage young people to maintain contact with family members and friends
while in placement at the home. Young people's files evidence their key social
contacts and highlight:any individual that poses a risk to the young person. The
home welicomes young people's visitors to the home and this ethos is apparent in
literature young people receive. The home has a designated 'quiet’ room which can
be used for private meetings with young people's significant others. Young people
also receive funding to ensure credit is available on their mobile phones. Staff
encourage young people's family and friends to participate in events organised by
the home; recently a young person's birthday party and barbeque have been heid on
the home's premises.

Staff encourage young people to make decisions about the running of the home,
Residents are invited to attend weekly ‘Community meetings' where they have the
opportunity to share their views and opinions about the home's services. These
meetings are largely managed by the residents and are consistently heid and
reported upon. Managers of the home are responsible for following up on issues
raised. Recent discussions have included issues of bullying, cleaning chores, room
searches and substance misuse. Young people's key work sessions are another
forum for them to share their opinions and participate in the decision making
process. These are formally held every six weeks and young people are aware that
they can meet with staff of the home on an ad hoc basis whenever they wish. Staff
€ncourage young people to make decisions regarding the décor of their bedrooms,
meal choices, daily planning and group activities.

Achieving economic welibeing

The provision is satisfactory.

Young people resident at the home generally enjoy homely accommodation, which is
adequately furnished, well maintained with good facilities. However, the home's

carpeting in the reception area is worn and dirty in appearance. This is not conducive
to a pleasant domestic environment.



Page 95

Inspection Report: Haringey Park Children's Home, 16/06/2009 : ibof 12

Organisation
The organisation is satisfactory.

Young people and other interested parties are aware of the aims and objectives of
the home as this is well illustrated in the home's statement of purpose document.
The document is compliant with the requirements of the regulations. Since the last
inspection, the provider has made available a newly revised children's guide for the
home. Young people receive this document together with a welcome pack and a
range of toiletries upon admission to the home to help ease andipersonalise the
experience. The new children's quide is a creative, colourful document, with
literature and graphics that are relevant to young people new to the home. Key
information about the home's functioning, expectations, rules and general running is
well explained in age appropriate language. The children's guide can also be
accessed in community languages other than English and in othér forms of
communication.

Young people receive the care and services they need from experienced staff. The
staff group of the home is well established, some having worked at the home for
several years. The local authority encourages and provides opportunities for ail
members of staff to study health and social care NVQ at level 3. Staff confirm that
most have achieved this award, while others are in the process of completion or are
enrolied and are due to start the training. Staff generally share a good working
relationship with the young people and as a group they work effectively and
cohesively to meet young people's needs. Individual staff members are assigned
specific duties that they are responsible for, these include monitoring young people's
medication regimes, assisting young people with daily chores and monitoring the
home's health and safety procedures.

The registered manager is an experienced child care professional and the home also
has a deputy in place. Care staff indicate that support and supervision via line
managers is good. The home's staffing ratios are sufficient to meet young people's
needs; staff numbers can be increased to meet young people's specific needs for one
to one support if this is required. The provider has recently employed the services of
an independent consultant to assist with improvement and service development at
the home.

The promotion of equality and diversity is good. The service operates within clear
equal opportunities polices and staff pay good attention to the gender, religious,
ethnic, cultural and language needs of young people. This is well documented in
young people's case files. The staff group is diverse in terms of gender and ethnic
composition and the home's premises and literature display positive images that
reflect multi-cultural society. Young people have access to information in differing
community languages and modes of communication other than the written word.

The home's monthly monitoring visits and subsequent reports are conducted
consistently. Monitoring visit reports are fairly detailed in content and focus on key
areas of the home's functioning in accordance with the regulations. The previous



Page 96

In_spection Report: Haringey Rark Children's Home, 16/06/2609 1iof11

inspection noted delayed responses to recommendations made as a result of
monitoring visits, This remains the case, as a number of issues highlighted for
improvement appear consecutively in recent monitoring reports. Young people do
not benefit from delays in resolving identified weaknesses of the home's functioning.
This Is therefore a'repeat requirement.

W.hat must be done to secure future improvement?

Statu'iary'.:Rj_eq';iir.e'mgnt-s

This section sets ot the actions, which must be taken so that the registered =

S person/s meets the Care Standards Act 2000, Children's Homes Regulations 2001

- and the National Minimum Standerds. The Registered Provider(s) must compiy with

Due date |

| 16 | ensure that staff and young people have access to the home's | 01/09/2009
- | current complaints procedure on site'and that received
complaints and how they are resolved are fully documented
(Regulation 24) N L L

19 | ensure that staff document comprehensivé,ahd a_ccar'ate 01/09/2009
information inthe home's 'missing person’s' log {Regulation 16)

-2 |.ensure that staff consistently document young people’s risk | 01/09/2009 |
.| assessments (Regulation 1)~ oot tHEIIEEEE

24 ensure that all parts of the -h_ome,f-eSpéc'iai.iy"t'he ée’ception area | 01/09/2009
carpet are kept clean and well maintained. (Regulation 31)

| improved by staff promptly addressing weaknesses highlighted
in monthly monitoring reports. (Regulatior 34) ~ =

33 | ensure that the quality of care provided by the home is 01/09/2009 | -

26 ensure that staff consistently record daily fridge and freezer 0170972009
temperatures. {Regulation 23)




60/90/0€ Io3euey ysu 9rdoad 3unoA [y A[IUISISUOD JJels ey} dInsuy ¢ (11 uonems3yy)
(801 s, uosiad
Surssiw s owoy 9y} Ul UoIjeuLIoJul 61 pliepuel§
wed) JUdWOTeuB 9JeINOOE pue dAISUdYAIdWOoo
60/L0/90 yied AoSulrey JUSWINOOP JJeIS 18y} dInsuy ‘g ‘9] uone[n3RY
"JogeueW
o Aq duop oq [1Im
SWAISAS JO SuLIojruow Y|,
"opew $s21301d 10 SOWO0d
N0 A} JO 30 IO [BQIOA
IO UM JOUIID ‘uosiad
N 3unoA a3 03 oeq UAIS 2q
o) [[1M Yorqpad,] ‘ParesnsaAur
%u A1y 9q im drdoad Sunok “pPAIUAWNIOP
(O] o) £q apew syure[dwod [y K[[0J 918 POAJOSAI dIB A1)
a -2unpasoxd Moy pue sjure[dwod paA1adaI Jey)
syuredwod sawoy pue 911 uo 2npadoid sjurejdwod
oY} 03 SSOIE JARY [[IM JJeIS JUDLIND S QWIOY Y} 0} SSAIL JARY 9] plepuel§
pue d1doad SunoA oy jeyy | 91doad Sunok pue jyels jey) ansuy |
60/L0/90 Io3euew Ay, 2INSud [[1M Jd3RUBIA YL $7 suonem3ay
JHLATdINOD ALVd INOHM Ad NIMVL NOLLDV ATAINOTA NOLLOV suopeN3NY

HIWOH SNHIA'TIHO MAVd AHONIIVH

SJUdWRIINDIY AT10)N)e)§

6007 ANNL NV'Id NOLLOV dA4.LSH40O

1DV 18y} I9pun apewl ()7 SUOne[NIay SWOH S, UIP[IYD)
oy} pue GO(Z 19V Spiepuels d1ed ay) Jo syudwaiinbal o) yim A[duwos jsnw noA uorensigal 10y 31y Urewal 0} JOpIo U] ) syudwaIinbay] A1oyneig




")J00q F0[ SIY} Ul POpIOIAI
9q [ dmjerddwd)
Po0J JO SuIpI10da1
[IV "UsydiLy o) uryim
WA)SAS JUAIZAY POy Ay}
Jo Sunojruowr oy oddns
0} PAONPOJUI USQ SBY ‘sarnjerodwdy 97 plepue)§
Amdog UONBIUIWNIOP SSAUISNY 10Z3213 pue 93pLy AJIep pIodal
0 60/L0/80 Jo3eueN 10139q POO] I9Jes oy [, A[JU3SISUO0D JjeIs Jey) dInsuy ‘9 ‘(¢7 uonensay)
o "STI)SAS JUSLIND
n%u 0} syuowdAoxdwr 1s933ns 0)
I s3unodw jjels asn pue dIed
o Ayipenb Jojtuow ssaIppe
0} pa3eInodud 9q OS[e [[IM ‘syr0dar Suriojruow
JJe1s -owoy oy} uryiim yipne | Apqpuowt ur papy3Iy3Iy sassauyeom
€ Sa1 o Jo sueow £q Surssaippe Appdwoad gyers £q €€ paepue)s
Andaq a1ed Jo Ajjenb sawoy oy paaoxdur st owoy ay) £q papraoxd
Io3euepy | JojruOW [[IM JoZRUBW Y, a1ed Jo Aypenb oy jeyy aunsuy °g ‘(p€ uonensy)
"Q0UBIUD JUOJJ AU} UL PIE[ |  "poulBjuleW [[oM pue ued[o jdoy are $7 plepuel§
3uraq s1jodre) 'ssardoxd | jodred eore uondooar oy Aqreroadsa
60/L0/90 IoSeue\ ur AJUdLInD SI SIy I, ‘Quoy ayj Jo sped [[e asuy ¢ (1€ uonen3ay)
‘Palnuapt
ys11 3O sjuowdo[oAdp
MaU 0) FUIpI0dOE SJUOWISSISSE
Ando(q | parepdn oq [[1m SJUSWISSISSE ysu s, 9rdoad SunoA juswnoop 7 plepuels

1DV 18y} I9pun apewl ()7 SUOne[NIay SWOH S, UIP[IYD)
oy} pue GO(Z 19V Spiepuels d1ed ay) Jo syudwaiinbal o) yim A[duwos jsnw noA uorensigal 10y 31y Urewal 0} JOpIo U] ) syudwaIinbay] A1oyneig




Page 99

*6002/60/10 94 Aq pa1d[dwiod o9 [1m
dAoxdwr 01 sjudWIINbAI JO dON

[T® 18y} 2INSUD [[IM JISeURA] Y L,

6007/60/10 2}
AQq pa9[dwod 9q 03 9-] SUOIY [[V

a1ed Jo Ajpenb oy jey) aansug °g

"paurejurewt
[1oM pue ued[d 3doy are 1odred
eare uondadar oy A[[eroadsa
‘woy ayj Jo syed [[e ainsuyq ‘¢

SJUQWISSISSE
ysu s, 9pdoad SunoA judawnoop
AJUQ)SISUOD JJB)S Jey) QINSUf ‘¢

(307 s, uosiad 3urssrua
S,QWOoY A} Ul UOTJBULIOJUT
dJeINddE pue JAISUIYAIdwod
JUAWINOOP JJeIS Jey) AINSuy ‘¢

pauaWNO0p
A]I0J 918 POA[OSAI AIB AU}
Moy pue sjuredwod paA1addx
1By} pue 9IS UO dInpIdoxd
syure[dwod JuaLInd S, WOy
oy} 03 ss29e daey d1doad
3unoA pue jjess jey) dInsuy ‘|

woym
Aq pue udje) 9q 0} U0y

daoaduwy
0} JuwdIINbax Jo dNON

LDV ey 1opun opewt [()()g SUone[n3ay Swoy S, UdIp[Iy)

oy} pue GO(Z 19V Spiepuels d1ed ay) Jo syudwaiinbal o) yim A[duwos jsnw noA uorensigal 10y 31y Urewal 0} JOpIo U] ) syudwaIinbay] A1oyneig




Page 100

sainjerodwio)
10Zd21j pue 93pLyy A[Iep pIodax
A[3u)SISu09 JyeIs jey) 2Insuy 9

syr0dax Suriojruowt
ATgyuow ur pyySIY3IY
SOSSouUNeIM FUISSAIPPE
Apdwoad ggeis £q paroxdur
SI dwoy Y} Aq papraoid

1DV 18y} I9pun apewl ()7 SUOne[NIay SWOH S, UIP[IYD)
oy} pue GO(Z 19V Spiepuels d1ed ay) Jo syudwaiinbal o) yim A[duwos jsnw noA uorensigal 10y 31y Urewal 0} JOpIo U] ) syudwaIinbay] A1oyneig




Page 101 Agenda ltem 12

Document is exempt



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 107

Document is exempt



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 113

Document is exempt



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 119

Document is exempt



Page 126

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 127

Document is exempt



Page 134

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 135

Document is exempt



Page 146

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 147

Document is exempt



Page 154

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 155

Document is exempt



Page 164

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 165

Document is exempt



Page 174

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 175

Document is exempt



Page 184

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 185

Document is exempt



Page 194

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 195

Document is exempt



Page 206

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 207

Document is exempt



Page 216

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Lettings strategy consultation presentation
	6 Performance Monitoring: Children and Families July 2009 Data
	Appendix 1  Report on OC2 2007-08
	Appendix 2- Haringey OC2 comparator data 2007  2008

	7 Fostering Campaign
	8 Performance Indicators for Leaving Care and Asylum Service
	9 Haringey Park and Muswell House Inspection Reports
	2 Muswell House  st req doc Statuory requirements (3) (3)
	4 OFSTED REPORT JUNE 09 HARINGEY PARK
	5 OFSTED ACTION PLAN JUNE 2009 Haringey park (2)

	12 Haringey Park and Muswell House
	3 a Muswell Hse Report Feb 09 Final MA
	3 b Muswell House Report Mar  09 MA
	3 c Muswell House Report April 09 US
	3 d Muswell House Report May 09 US (2)
	3 e Muswell House Report June 09 US (F) (2)
	3 f Muswell House Report July 09 JL (F)
	6 a Haringey Park February 2009 JL1
	6 b Haringey_Park_March_2009_JL1 (2)
	6 c Haringey Park April 09 Final
	6 d Haringey Park May 09 (2)
	6 e Haringey Park June 09 Reg 33 MA (2)
	6 f Haringey Park July 2009 Reg 33 JL1


